






 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION  

MEETING 

 

 

 

 

 

February 1, 2021 

 

1



 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 
 
 

BOARD MEETING             DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
FEBRUARY 1, 2021                                                                                                                    5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 
6:00 P.M. 
 
 

AGENDA 
The February 1, 2021 Board of Education meeting will be held at 5606 South 147th Street, Omaha, NE. For public health 
purposes associated with COVID-19, this meeting can also be attended by videoconference through “ZOOM” with access 

available to the public and media. The Zoom link is https://mpsomaha-org.zoom.us/j/97105537796  and  
can also be found at www.mpsomaha.org/board.  

 
 

A.    Call to Order 
 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.  
 

B.    Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C.    Roll Call 
 
D.   Employee of the Month - Kirshell McClannan, Media Specialist at Cody Elementary and Jenny Meier, Secretary at  
       Wheeler Elementary. 
 
E.    Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only. 
       Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 
F.    Routine Matters 

1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes - January 18, 2021 
2. *Approval of Bills and receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 

 
G    Information Items 

1. Superintendent’s Comments 
2. Board Comments/Announcements 
3. Report from Student Representatives 

 
H.   Unfinished Business - None 
 
I.    New Business 

1. Approval of Millard Public School Level III/Ombudsman Plus Proposal 
2. Approval of Construction Documents for Cather Elementary School Renovation  
3. Approval of Construction Documents for Morton Elementary School Renovation 
4. Approval of Construction Documents for Millard North Middle School Renovation 
5. Approval of Contract for Keith Lutz Horizon High School Dock and Service Drive Replacement 
6. Approval of Contract for South High School Parking Lot Replacement Phase I 
7. Approval of Contract for Cather Elementary School Site Lighting Replacement 
8. Approval of Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire, Resignation Agenda, VSP (Voluntary Separation 

Program) 
9. Executive Session - Personnel and Negotiations  

1 

2

https://mpsomaha-org.zoom.us/j/97105537796
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kOgWmGB0nXgWJHyZmLybM6lPR8F3z3U8/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/12ilhNsU7TEwltWY2CbHKM-PJohJ4xlVH/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sJXMFblzj-7PwX7oqa-cixDvftowWnF6/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11gbLh2pHw3ffOElGemzhMpdu5-kCkhMr/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1E5oGLdvmR2s9J15lIZa18Od16aVQoyHq/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1fe0tmbJ8s7tApy0YZmSgKB1SRKYV2VDs/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1wwI_EMtd29AhTTi-i1S4Mpz9qc_d0jul/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1hm7huFg9MUAdvqLBgo58rlmYEpPDpeW4/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/14I71SP7_pRJ7MQeV5cKimc_5BQzC3aqj/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16wl9TNh2-dEdARP0N6WPMQ7W8kkFtvuC/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16wl9TNh2-dEdARP0N6WPMQ7W8kkFtvuC/view?usp=sharing


 

 
 
J.    Reports 

1. Food Service Report 
2. English Language Development (ELD) Program Review Report 
3. Enrollment Report (Mid Year) 
4. Legislative Report 
5. District Update 

 
K.    Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar 

1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 8, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 
2. No School for Students February 10-15, 2021 – Conferences/Staff Development 
3. No School for Students February 15, 2021 – Presidents’ Day 
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 1, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 
5. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 8, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 15, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 
7. Spring Break – No School April 5 - 9, 2021 
8. District Office Closed on Friday, April 9, 2021 
9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 19, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 

 
L.   Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. 
        Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.  
 
M.    Adjournment 
 
All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may 
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 
 

 

2 

3

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZYU3To576qAlpPCSs2saxduNBxbkZUqI/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1UDwNr0TPNyX4luTy6n9cokqR6X_Hm0u0/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1XDfsYOqClssVRu24Xkaf2PWV9aueQarW/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/17gsc8AVCm4o0D6HMdfgTLdHA-2_4HgVT/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 
 
 

BOARD MEETING            DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
FEBRUARY 1, 2021                                                                                                                    5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 
6:00 P.M.  
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 
 

A.     Call to Order 
 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.  
 

B.     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C.     Roll Call 
 
D.     Employee of the Month - Kirshell McClannan, Media Specialist at Cody Elementary and Jenny Meier, Secretary at  
         Wheeler Elementary. 
 
E.     Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only. 
         Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.   
 
F.1*   Motion by __________, seconded by __________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from January 18,  
           2020. (See enclosure) 
 
F.2*   Motion by __________, seconded by __________, to approve the bills, receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on  
          File. (See enclosure)  
 
G.1    Superintendent’s Comments 
 
G.2    Board Comments/Announcements 
 
G.3    Report from Student Representatives 
 
H.1    Unfinished Business - None 
  
I.1    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to the Millard Public School Level III/Ombudsman Plus 
         Proposal and authorize the Associate Superintendent of Educational Services to execute any and all documents related  
         to the proposal. (See enclosure)  
 
I.2    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the construction documents for the Cather Elementary 
         School project be approved as submitted. (See enclosure) 
 
I.3    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the construction documents for the Morton Elementary 
         School project be approved as submitted. (See enclosure) 
 
I.4    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the construction documents for the North Middle School 
         project be approved as submitted. (See enclosure) 

1 

4



 
 
 
I.5    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the contract for the Keith Lutz Horizon High School 
         Dock and Service Drive Replacement be awarded to TR Construction in the amount of $204,225.67 and that the Chief  
         Financial Officer be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure) 
 
I.6   Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the contract for the South High School Parking Lot 
        Replacement Phase I be awarded to TR Construction in the amount of $405,546.03 and that the Chief Financial Officer  
        be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure) 
 
I.7    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the contract for the Cather Elementary School Site 
         Lighting Replacement be awarded to Shaefer Electric in the amount of $88,245 and that the Chief Financial Officer be  
         authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure) 
 
I.8    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve of Personnel Actions:  Recommendation to Hire,  
         Resignation Agenda, Leave of Absence. (See enclosure) 
 
I.9    Executive Session - Personnel and Negotiations  
 
J.    Reports 

1. Food Service Report 
2. English Language Development (ELD) Program Review Report 
3. Enrollment Report (Mid Year) 
4. Legislative Report 
5. District Update 

 
K.    Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar 

1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 8, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 
2. No School for Students February 10-15, 2021 – Conferences/Staff Development 
3. No School for Students February 15, 2021 – Presidents’ Day 
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 1, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 
5. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 8, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 15, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 
7. Spring Break – No School April 5 - 9, 2021 
8. District Office Closed on Friday, April 9, 2021 
9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 19, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC 

 
L.    Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. 
        Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 
M.    Adjournment 
 
All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may 
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

2 

5



 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 
A meeting of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the county of Douglas in the state of Nebraska was 
convened in open and public session at 6:00 p.m., Monday, January 18, 2021, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 
South 147th Street. For public health purposes associated with COVID-19, this meeting could also be attended by 
videoconference through “ZOOM” with access available to the public and media. The Zoom link was 
https://mpsomaha-org.zoom.us/j/95882129417, and was posted on the district website.  
 
Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, January 15, 2021 a copy of 
the publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of 
Education and a copy of their Acknowledgement of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes. 
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this meeting. 
All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the public. 
 
President Linda Poole announced that the open meeting laws are posted and available for public inspection and asked 
everyone to join in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Roll call was taken. Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, and Mrs. McGill Johnson were present. 
 
Mrs. Poole announced this is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  There were no 
requests to speak. 
 
Motion was made by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve the Board of Education minutes for January 4, 
2021, approve the bills and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Anderson, 
Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Pate, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mrs. Poole. Voting against were:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Superintendent’s Comments: None 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Mike Kennedy:  
Mr. Kennedy said he hopes our students and community had time to reflect on Dr. Martin Luther King Jr today.  
 
Mike Pate:  None 
 
Dave Anderson: None 
 
Amanda McGill Johnson: None 
 
Stacy Jolley: 
Mrs. Jolley congraudated Mrs. Amanda McGill Johnson on her book release. 
 
Linda Poole: None 
 
Unfinished Business: None 
 
New Business: 
 
Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Dave Anderson, to reaffirm Policy 5000: Student Services - General Policy Statement. 
Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, and Mrs. 
Poole. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.  
 
Motion by Amanda McGill Johnson, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to reaffirm Policy 5710: Student Services - Access to Student 
Records. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and 
Mr. Kennedy. Voting against were: None. Motion carried. 

1 

6



 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve Rule 5710.1: Student Services - Student Records. Voting in 
favor of said motion was: Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, and Mrs. Jolley. Voting 
against were: None. Motion carried.  
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Stacy Jolley,  to approve the Board Appointments. Mrs. Poole said she thinks each 
board member brings different strengths to the board and we all have places that we can grow.  She said many of these 
committees have stayed the same for years and she would like to give others the opportunity to grow. Voting in favor of said 
motion was: Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, and Mrs. McGill Johnson. Voting against were: 
None. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Dave Anderson,  that the contract for the North Middle School Track Replacement be 
awarded to M.E. Collins Contracting Company in the amount of $513,410.50 and that the Chief Financial Officer be 
authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier said Joe Zadina 
from Morrissey Engineering was available to address questions and concerns from the Board.  Voting in favor of said 
motion was: Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Kennedy, and Mr. Pate. Voting against were: 
None. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Stacy Jolley, that the contract for the Multiple Site Door and Frame Replacements 
be awarded to KC Petersen Construction in the amount of $82,500 and that the Chief Financial Officer  be authorized to 
execute any and all documents related to such project. Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier said Pat Carson from BCDM 
Architects was available to address questions and concerns from the Board.  Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Jolley, 
Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, and Mrs. Poole. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.  
 
Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Amanda McGill Johnson, that the contract for the Young Adult Program Restroom 
Renovations be awarded to KE Flex Contracting in the amount of $36,776 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized 
to execute any and all documents related to such project. Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier said Pat Carson from 
BCDM Architects was available to address questions and concerns from the Board. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. 
Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mr. Kennedy. Voting against were: None. Motion 
carried. 
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve of Personnel Actions:  Recommendation to Hire: Brett A. 
Friesen, Keegan R. Case, Catherine C. Green, Robin D. McKenzie, Mackenzie L. Harte; Resignation Agenda: Amber N. 
Schrunk, Jessica L. Barr; Leave of Absence; Voluntary Separation Program (VSP): Paul M. LaFond, Dallas C. Wellensiek, 
Anne M. Servais. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. 
Poole, and Mrs. Jolley. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.  
 
Reports:  
 
Insurance Report 
The District has engaged the services of the Harry A. Koch Company (HAKCO) as its insurance consultant.  Each year, the 
consultant makes a report to the Board and addresses any questions the board members may have.  Bill Unger, representative 
with HAKCO, was available to give a short presentation. 
 
Construction Report 
Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier said this report will provide projects that are recently completed. It also provided a 
detailed breakout of the 2013 bond funded projects. Mr. Meisgeier thanked General Manager Steve Mainelli for all of his 
work on these projects.  
  
2018 Strategic Plan Update 
Assistant Superintendent for Leadership, Planning & Evaluation Dr. Kim Saum-Mills said Millard has used Strategic 
Planning and Site Planning as the mechanism for school improvement since the 1989-1990 school year. We wrote a new 
Strategic Plan in 2017-2018 and began implementation in 2018-2019. We are now in year 4 of our implementation of our 
strategic plan. Next year will be year 5 of the implementation, and we are targeting the summer of 2022 to write our new 

2 

7



plan. Dr. Saum Mills said the report provides an overview and status of each of the eight strategies. Dr. Saum-Mills said she, 
Dr. Phipps, Dr. Weers, Dr. Houlton and Mr. Jelkin were available to answer questions. 
 
Impact of COVID - Return to Thriving Report  
Dr. Sutfin said as the district continues to manage the response to the pandemic, we are also looking toward recovery. Dr. 
Sutfin detailed the learning gap and said that frequency, intensity, and duration will be key elements to improving student 
learning as we address the disruption caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
The learning disruption began on March 13, 2020 with the closure of schools. During the 2020-21 school year, the district has 
offered concurrent remote learning. More than 4,000 students began the school year remotely. That number has decreased by 
25% as the school year has progressed. Additionally more than 1,100 students and staff members have had COVID during 
some point in the year with another 4,500 student and staff members being required to quarantine after being identified as a 
close contact to a COVID positive individual. 
 
Dr. Sutfin acknowledged the tremendous effort put forth by teachers and staff to keep our buildings open and maximize 
learning despite the disruption caused by the pandemic.  
 
Assistant Superintendent for Leadership, Planning & Evaluation Dr. Kim Saum-Mills shared that the district is using our 
strategic planning process to close the gap. Last week a team of building and district leaders gathered to determine priorities. 
Detailed planning has begun for the 2021-22 school year including reteaching, interventions, summer school, communication 
with our families and targeted professional development for our staff. 
 
Dr. Darin Kelberlau, Executive Director of Assessment, Research & Evaluation reviewed data with the Board.  He shared 
that the MAP test scores for students from last fall to this fall show a dip in reading and math. The good news is that recovery 
is already underway. Being in school this year has been helpful with this winter's MAP scores showing the gaps are closing. 
But recovery work still needs to be done. 
 
The high school failure rates for students also reflected the impact of the pandemic. In looking at high school students who 
experienced failing grades in two or more classes, in-person students had an 11.4% failure rate for the fall. This was an 
increase from past years which had been at 8.6% in 2018-19 and 8.9% in 2019-20. Remote high school students experienced 
a much higher failure rate of two or more classes at 32.6%.  Remote students are welcome to return at any point, and parents 
are urged to closely monitor their child's academic progress and reach out to the school if they have any questions.  
 
Dr. Heather Phipps, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services answered questions from the Board and shared that 
she will present high school credit recovery plans at the February Committee meeting.  
 
Dr. Sutfin concluded the report by reminding the Board that together as one community, we can continue to move forward 
with our response to COVID-19 and ensure our students' continued academic and social-emotional development. 
 
Exiting Senior Survey– Class of 2020 and 8th-9th Grade Transition  
Director of Secondary Education Dr. Tony Weers shared the results of the exiting senior and 8th to 9th grade transition 
survey report. Dr. Weers said the purpose of this report is to give a picture of the preparation for transition from middle to 
high school and post high school plans for our graduates. Seventy-nine percent of our graduates reported they plan to be in 
school full or part time within a year of graduating. Extracurricular activity participation continues to be high with over 80% 
of students reporting participation. The majority of incoming freshmen reported that they felt prepared for academic success 
in high school. 
 
Legislative Update 
Executive Director of Activities, Athletics & External Affairs Nolan Beyer provided the board with a legislative update. Mr. 
Beyer said tomorrow Tuesday, January 19, 2021 is the ninth day of  the 90 day session. Mr. Beyer said regarding the CARES 
funding, one common misconception by senators is that districts have CARES funding remaining. Mr. Beyer said the 

3 

8



9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Millard Public Schools 
February 1, 2021 

 

10



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475062  01/14/2021 108436  COX COMMUNICATIONS INC             $7,362.24

475063  01/14/2021 108436  COX COMMUNICATIONS INC             $17,649.74

475064  01/14/2021 064800  METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA  $3,495.29

475065  01/14/2021 133300  TALX UC EXPRESS                    $1,218.60

475068  01/21/2021 064800  METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA  $0.00

475070  01/21/2021 139797  US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION       $0.00

475073  01/21/2021 064800  METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA  $78,060.78

475075  01/21/2021 139797  US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION       $100.00

475076  01/26/2021 131832  DEANNA S MAHER                     $0.00

475078  02/01/2021 010040  A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC      $663.58

475079  02/01/2021 139548  KRISTEN S ABUEG                    $89.87

475080  02/01/2021 010112  JOSEY THOMAS AARON                 $80.00

475082  02/01/2021 139412  ERIN M AGUIRRE                     $34.72

475083  02/01/2021 143193  AIRTECH SERVICE INC                $1,409.50

475084  02/01/2021 139362  AMANDA L AKSAMIT                   $54.17

475085  02/01/2021 136683  DANIEL J ALLAN                     $91.44

475086  02/01/2021 137976  HALEY E ALLEN                      $41.86

475087  02/01/2021 139802  JENNIFER L ALLEN                   $227.76

475088  02/01/2021 012050  AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION       $140.60

475089  02/01/2021 101779  AMERICAN SCHOOL COUNSELOR ASSOC    $164.00

475090  02/01/2021 139056  AMERICAN SOCIETY OF COMPOSERS      $367.33

475091  02/01/2021 065425  ANDERSEN MIDDLE SCHOOL             $360.00

475092  02/01/2021 143247  PAUL P ANDERSON                    $51.52

475093  02/01/2021 131265  JILL M ANDERSON                    $41.17

475094  02/01/2021 012989  APPLE COMPUTER INC                 $2,718.00

475095  02/01/2021 141669  SAUNDERS COUNTY SCHOOL DIST 0001   $57.00

475096  02/01/2021 139534  RICK A BAILEY                      $35.00

475097  02/01/2021 137482  KRISTINA A BAMESBERGER             $37.95

Jan 26, 2021 1

11



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475098  02/01/2021 133154  DESAREE D BARR                     $24.15

475099  02/01/2021 017877  CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR              $89.87

475100  02/01/2021 140942  HALEY R BARRY                      $21.97

475101  02/01/2021 141712  BRIDGET R BARRY                    $60.00

475102  02/01/2021 138305  MEAGAN L BASYE                     $18.98

475104  02/01/2021 139783  LYNNE H BECKER                     $3,072.33

475105  02/01/2021 141521  ERIKA J BECKLEY                    $54.91

475106  02/01/2021 107540  BRIAN F BEGLEY                     $170.78

475107  02/01/2021 139889  DARLA G BELL                       $84.64

475108  02/01/2021 134884  JULIE K BERGSTROM                  $226.63

475109  02/01/2021 139161  BERKLEY RISK ADMINISTRATORS CO LLC $5,000.00

475110  02/01/2021 142454  LAURA C BESHALER                   $129.41

475111  02/01/2021 134749  RHONDA R BETZOLD                   $363.40

475112  02/01/2021 139321  BIZCO INC                          $351.00

475113  02/01/2021 142377  ABBY J BJORNSEN                    $24.04

475114  02/01/2021 134478  TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH               $63.95

475115  02/01/2021 143307  TEJASWINI BOINPALLY                $145.00

475116  02/01/2021 130899  KIMBERLY M BOLAN                   $99.42

475117  02/01/2021 136274  BYRON P BRAASCH                    $58.65

475118  02/01/2021 139947  YESENIA BRAVO                      $176.12

475119  02/01/2021 139890  DOUGLAS J BREITER                  $62.56

475121  02/01/2021 141510  CHRISTINE L BUKOWSKI               $102.35

475122  02/01/2021 010061  BULLER FIXTURE COMPANY             $114.42

475124  02/01/2021 142667  COMPASS GROUP INC                  $362.05

475125  02/01/2021 131158  CURTIS R CASE                      $23.00

475126  02/01/2021 133970  CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS           $1,514.62

475128  02/01/2021 136560  CAITLIN CEDFELDT                   $120.00

475129  02/01/2021 135648  SUSAN M CHADWICK                   $3.62

Jan 26, 2021 2

12



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475130  02/01/2021 136654  NICOLE A CHAPMAN                   $16.33

475131  02/01/2021 142721  SHOOF PRODUCTION LLC               $1,750.00

475132  02/01/2021 142131  KEITH CHURCHILL                    $1,200.00

475133  02/01/2021 131135  PATRICIA A CLIFTON                 $42.38

475134  02/01/2021 132152  GOVCONNECTION INC                  $131.93

475135  02/01/2021 143248  RANA R COREY                       $19.55

475136  02/01/2021 135992  DAVID J CORK                       $57.50

475137  02/01/2021 132443  CORNERSTONES OF CARE               $5,100.00

475138  02/01/2021 137922  MICHAEL CRADDUCK                   $180.00

475139  02/01/2021 135661  CREIGHTON PREP                     $80.00

475140  02/01/2021 106893  WICHITA WATER CONDITIONING INC     $65.25

475141  02/01/2021 027300  CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER LLC          $9,414.76

475142  02/01/2021 141898  JACOB S CURTISS                    $465.00

475143  02/01/2021 130900  CHERYL L CUSTARD                   $46.92

475144  02/01/2021 132671  JEAN T DAIGLE                      $110.34

475145  02/01/2021 131003  DAILY RECORD                       $17.90

475146  02/01/2021 138477  MIDWEST HARDWOODS                  $118.02

475147  02/01/2021 135569  CYNTHIA L DARK                     $63.48

475148  02/01/2021 134816  DATA DOCUMENTS LLC                 $23,656.25

475149  02/01/2021 106713  ANDREW S DEFREECE                  $24.15

475150  02/01/2021 136493  ANNE DELUCA                        $180.00

475151  02/01/2021 032800  DEMCO INC                          $381.91

475152  02/01/2021 032872  DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY              $1,176.12

475153  02/01/2021 137331  BASTIAN DERICHS                    $64.92

475154  02/01/2021 019132  DICK BLICK SEE V#099220            $528.79

475155  02/01/2021 132669  DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC            $245.00

475156  02/01/2021 143356  DIVERSITY RECRUITMENT PARTNERS LLC $399.00

475157  02/01/2021 139349  TERRIN D DORATHY                   $10.12

Jan 26, 2021 3

13



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475158  02/01/2021 135689  SUSAN M DULANY                     $96.09

475159  02/01/2021 143357  DURHAM ACADEMY INC                 $720.00

475160  02/01/2021 135173  RYAN PATRICK DURHAM                $120.00

475161  02/01/2021 138426  KELLY D EALY                       $60.43

475162  02/01/2021 052370  ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO            $116.72

475163  02/01/2021 037525  EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3        $88,537.34

475164  02/01/2021 133823  REBECCA S EHRHORN                  $269.79

475165  02/01/2021 108082  ELECTRONIC CONTRACTING COMPANY     $140.00

475166  02/01/2021 038140  ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.              $3,624.80

475167  02/01/2021 141577  ELITE PROFESSIONALS HOME CARE LLC  $5,785.00

475168  02/01/2021 131007  ELMAN & CO INC                     $297.00

475169  02/01/2021 142407  SAMANTHA L ENGEL                   $20.93

475170  02/01/2021 102720  EPCO LTD INC                       $516.00

475171  02/01/2021 135360  PAMELA A ERIXON                    $145.41

475172  02/01/2021 137950  MICHAEL D ETZELMILLER              $43.13

475173  02/01/2021 136377  FEINER SUPPLY CO                   $78.90

475174  02/01/2021 143365  SARAH F FERGUSON                   $594.12

475175  02/01/2021 137016  ANGELA L FERGUSON                  $33.06

475176  02/01/2021 141922  MARIAN FEY                         $16.81

475177  02/01/2021 130731  FIRST WIRELESS INC                 $625.00

475178  02/01/2021 142378  FIS DATA SYSTEMS INC               $20.00

475179  02/01/2021 135137  PAUL A GABEL                       $55.78

475180  02/01/2021 044155  GENERAL FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT CO $686.90

475181  02/01/2021 106660  GLASSMASTERS INC                   $2,663.50

475182  02/01/2021 143361  GRACE NOTES LLC                    $35.00

475183  02/01/2021 044950  GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY         $2,234.58

475184  02/01/2021 142924  GREATER OMAHA ATTENDANCE & LEARNING $1,500.00

475185  02/01/2021 143306  AKITIKRISHNA GUNDA                 $120.00

Jan 26, 2021 4

14



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475186  02/01/2021 138427  JEFF T GUSTAFSON                   $143.75

475187  02/01/2021 139818  ANGELA R HAASE                     $44.97

475188  02/01/2021 140575  WALTER R HAMILTON                  $60.00

475189  02/01/2021 F03042  HARRIS COMPUTER CORP               $32,112.75

475190  02/01/2021 056820  FIRST INSURANCE GROUP LLC          $358.00

475191  02/01/2021 143270  VICTORIA L HASIAK                  $17.95

475192  02/01/2021 109808  CHERYL L HEIMES                    $41.57

475193  02/01/2021 102842  HELGET GAS PRODUCTS INC            $3.31

475194  02/01/2021 143359  JACI L HENDERSON                   $93.84

475195  02/01/2021 134455  ROBERT J HETTINGER                 $906.22

475196  02/01/2021 142494  NIKOLE A HEVELONE                  $100.00

475197  02/01/2021 048845  CAMILLE H HINZ                     $16.85

475198  02/01/2021 140246  THERESA I HOAG                     $16.05

475203  02/01/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $80,902.09

475204  02/01/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $6,584.84

475206  02/01/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $1,162.17

475208  02/01/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $572.01

475209  02/01/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $870.45

475210  02/01/2021 049650  HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT PUB CO   $420.78

475211  02/01/2021 109836  AMY L HOULTON                      $87.69

475212  02/01/2021 101533  DIANE F HOWARD                     $25.70

475216  02/01/2021 137426  HUGHES MULCH PRODUCTS LLC          $16,870.00

475217  02/01/2021 140205  JADE A HUGHES                      $56.49

475218  02/01/2021 049844  HYDRONIC ENERGY INC                $248.00

475219  02/01/2021 133397  HY-VEE INC                         $253.59

475220  02/01/2021 143299  IDENTITY AUTOMATION LP             $49,859.75

475222  02/01/2021 102451  INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE        $269.00

475223  02/01/2021 102958  ALL BATTERY CENTERS INC            $314.75

Jan 26, 2021 5

15



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475224  02/01/2021 140729  J F AHERN CO                       $7,998.00

475225  02/01/2021 143010  CHRISTOPOHER DANIEL JACKSON        $150.00

475226  02/01/2021 141976  SHANNON E JANICEK                  $35.94

475227  02/01/2021 131157  CHRISTINE A JANOVEC-POEHLMAN       $90.86

475228  02/01/2021 133037  JENSEN TIRE & AUTO #15             $505.30

475229  02/01/2021 083400  TYCO FIRE & SECURITY MANAGEMENT INC $3,814.38

475230  02/01/2021 143364  MCKENZIE B JOHNSON                 $158.72

475231  02/01/2021 141716  REBECCA L JOHNSON                  $160.00

475232  02/01/2021 142898  JUST FOR KIDS THERAPY INC          $251.25

475233  02/01/2021 143367  RUTHVICK S KASIREDDY               $180.00

475234  02/01/2021 140091  KENT J KINGSTON                    $6.90

475235  02/01/2021 139753  CHERIS A KITE                      $16.05

475236  02/01/2021 132264  MICHELLE M KLUG                    $529.00

475237  02/01/2021 136285  MICHELLE L KRAFT                   $8.63

475238  02/01/2021 141957  MELINDA S KRAUSE                   $21.56

475239  02/01/2021 137385  JOSEPH R KUEHL                     $30.25

475241  02/01/2021 143366  NICHOLAS R LANGER                  $594.12

475242  02/01/2021 135257  LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES INC         $918.39

475243  02/01/2021 135810  GREGG A LEARNED                    $99.96

475244  02/01/2021 140464  LEARNING FORWARD NEBRASKA          $25.00

475247  02/01/2021 100058  LINCOLN EAST HIGH SCHOOL           $365.00

475248  02/01/2021 106116  LINCOLN HIGH SCHOOL                $112.00

475249  02/01/2021 134281  LINCOLN NORTH STAR HIGH SCHOOL     $250.00

475250  02/01/2021 100006  LINCOLN SOUTHEAST HIGH SCHOOL      $126.00

475251  02/01/2021 132518  LINCOLN SOUTHWEST HIGH SCHOOL      $172.00

475252  02/01/2021 131397  LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC            $172.71

475253  02/01/2021 131586  LYMM CONSTRUCTION INC              $11,325.00

475254  02/01/2021 108106  LEANNA MACDONALD                   $1,268.25

Jan 26, 2021 6

16



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475255  02/01/2021 143268  DEBORAH A MACKEY                   $32.26

475256  02/01/2021 099321  MACKIN BOOK CO                     $964.09

475257  02/01/2021 137281  DMG INC                            $1,286.36

475258  02/01/2021 138772  SHELLY A MANN                      $25.36

475260  02/01/2021 108052  MAX I WALKER UNIFORM & APPAREL     $707.26

475261  02/01/2021 138341  MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES HOLDINGS $37,856.00

475262  02/01/2021 139237  MICHAEL C MCCAULEY                 $25,453.50

475263  02/01/2021 140110  MCGRAW-HILL EDUCATION INC          $4,666.10

475264  02/01/2021 143353  JARED A MCNAIR                     $53.02

475265  02/01/2021 141523  KELLI M MCWILLIAMS                 $7.02

475266  02/01/2021 064260  MECHANICAL SALES INC.              $23,781.90

475268  02/01/2021 064413  MENARDS INC                        $540.60

475269  02/01/2021 139979  MENARDS INC                        $151.74

475270  02/01/2021 134115  JULIE L MENKE                      $3.99

475271  02/01/2021 064600  METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC $2,392.00

475273  02/01/2021 133403  AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK             $14,502.51

475274  02/01/2021 143278  MARK E MEYER JR                    $26.11

475275  02/01/2021 139339  SPORTS FACILITY MAINTENANCE LLC    $6,091.00

475276  02/01/2021 064950  MIDWEST METAL WORKS INC            $150.00

475278  02/01/2021 141026  JASON MITERA                       $23.14

475279  02/01/2021 140735  WMK LLC                            $6,856.21

475280  02/01/2021 142525  MICHAEL J MONTEMARANO              $34.39

475281  02/01/2021 140990  LAURA M MORRIS                     $163.54

475282  02/01/2021 142908  SCOTT M MORRIS                     $17.18

475283  02/01/2021 134532  MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC          $6,720.00

475284  02/01/2021 067000  NASCO                              $1,651.28

475285  02/01/2021 067085  NATIONAL ART EDUCATION ASSN        $100.00

475286  02/01/2021 132854  NATIONAL SAFETY COUNCIL            $150.00

Jan 26, 2021 7

17



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475287  02/01/2021 130548  NCS PEARSON INC                    $722.40

475289  02/01/2021 068445  NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC        $399.00

475290  02/01/2021 142414  NEBRASKA SALT & GRAIN CO           $21,716.77

475291  02/01/2021 143282  NICOLE B NELSON                    $32.32

475292  02/01/2021 142353  ASHLEY B NODGAARD                  $29.56

475293  02/01/2021 107905  MELINDA C NOLLER                   $18.17

475294  02/01/2021 141155  NORRIS SCHOOL DISTRICT #160        $40.00

475295  02/01/2021 140537  EVE E NORTON                       $38.76

475296  02/01/2021 100013  OFFICE DEPOT  84133510             $1,638.94

475297  02/01/2021 070245  RICHELIEU AMERICA LTD              $1,950.79

475298  02/01/2021 070800  OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT        $309,118.73

475299  02/01/2021 070810  OMAHA PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT       $309.00

475300  02/01/2021 140402  OMNI FINANCIAL GROUP INC           $997.50

475301  02/01/2021 133850  ONE SOURCE                         $2,382.00

475302  02/01/2021 138662  KELLY D OSTRAND                    $41.89

475303  02/01/2021 142290  OVERDRIVE INC                      $3,000.00

475304  02/01/2021 134428  ELIZABETH A PACHTA                 $125.06

475305  02/01/2021 133419  PAPILLION-LAVISTA SOUTH HIGH SCHOOL $40.00

475306  02/01/2021 132006  ANDREA L PARSONS                   $117.54

475308  02/01/2021 106920  HOWARD T PETERSON                  $120.00

475309  02/01/2021 137722  ANDREW C PINKALL                   $69.00

475310  02/01/2021 073040  PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC  $5,000.00

475311  02/01/2021 139928  DANIEL J POLODNA                   $29.33

475312  02/01/2021 072899  LINDA POOLE                        $175.36

475313  02/01/2021 142318  KAREN S PORTER                     $24.50

475314  02/01/2021 131835  PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP            $5,667.66

475315  02/01/2021 101663  PRESTWICK HOUSE INC                $1,251.37

475316  02/01/2021 109845  CHRISTINA PREUSS                   $47.74

Jan 26, 2021 8

18



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475317  02/01/2021 134598  PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC           $111,064.00

475318  02/01/2021 141236  PRISM SMART SOLUTIONS              $33,480.00

475319  02/01/2021 109810  BETHANY B RAY                      $134.26

475320  02/01/2021 106164  RAYMOND CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL        $688.00

475321  02/01/2021 143360  DEBORAH KAY REED                   $2,000.00

475322  02/01/2021 135690  DEIDRE M REEH                      $51.35

475323  02/01/2021 109192  KIMBERLI R RICE                    $39.62

475324  02/01/2021 135484  KRISTI L RICHLING                  $19.32

475328  02/01/2021 143241  MICHAEL J RUCKER                   $73.19

475329  02/01/2021 081725  KIMBERLEY K SAUM-MILLS             $66.25

475330  02/01/2021 141637  DOMINIQUE M SCHAFER                $167.79

475331  02/01/2021 138484  CINDY M SCHARFF                    $25.19

475333  02/01/2021 138274  RONALD P SCHINSTOCK                $6.44

475335  02/01/2021 137416  NICHOLE E SCHWAB                   $48.01

475336  02/01/2021 134567  KAYE M SCHWEIGERT                  $51.98

475338  02/01/2021 082905  KIMBERLY A SECORA                  $24.84

475339  02/01/2021 140383  SENTRY INSURANCE, A MUTUAL COMPANY $96,742.32

475340  02/01/2021 135140  SETPOINT CONTROLS LLC              $225.00

475341  02/01/2021 109800  AMY L SHATTUCK                     $75.61

475342  02/01/2021 143104  SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP             $1,346.54

475343  02/01/2021 135483  SHIRT SHACK OMAHA INC              $584.58

475344  02/01/2021 143308  ELIANA G SIEBE-WALLES              $60.00

475345  02/01/2021 132590  SILVERSTONE GROUP INC              $5,489.00

475346  02/01/2021 143266  NATHAN M SMITH                     $86.14

475347  02/01/2021 140891  MARCIA L SMITH                     $175.51

475348  02/01/2021 137828  BRENT D SNOW                       $26.30

475349  02/01/2021 101476  SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES            $110,038.83

475350  02/01/2021 142226  MICHELLE R SOMERVILLE              $8.11

Jan 26, 2021 9

19



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475351  02/01/2021 109843  SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS CO           $3,953.64

475352  02/01/2021 136316  EVA M STALLING                     $8.97

475353  02/01/2021 142102  STERLING COMPUTERS CORPORATION     $14,425.11

475354  02/01/2021 142516  THEODORE N STOCKING                $27.23

475355  02/01/2021 139843  STUDENT TRANSPORATION NEBRASKA INC $292,078.61

475356  02/01/2021 137011  CARRIE A SWANEY                    $90.16

475357  02/01/2021 140513  ANNA M THOMA                       $1,497.00

475358  02/01/2021 135006  STEVE D THRONE                     $349.14

475359  02/01/2021 141524  SONIA E TIPP                       $114.66

475360  02/01/2021 131729  THEATRICAL MEDIA SERVICES INC.     $238.38

475361  02/01/2021 140649  REGAN TOKOS                        $60.00

475362  02/01/2021 142476  RON STEINER                        $3,742.00

475363  02/01/2021 143077  JACK WILLIAM TOMSU                 $75.00

475364  02/01/2021 089574  TOTAL MARKETING INC                $30.00

475365  02/01/2021 143258  VACCINATION SERVICES OF AMERICA INC $8,385.00

475366  02/01/2021 106493  TRITZ PLUMBING, INC.               $16,534.03

475367  02/01/2021 142309  UNANIMOUS INC                      $5,313.52

475368  02/01/2021 139511  UNITED REFRIGERATION INC           $2,568.44

475369  02/01/2021 134849  UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AMERICA) INC $941.70

475370  02/01/2021 100923  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA LINCOLN     $35.00

475371  02/01/2021 068834  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA-LINCOLN     $75.00

475372  02/01/2021 134231  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT KEARNEY  $300.00

475373  02/01/2021 068834  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA-LINCOLN     $230.99

475374  02/01/2021 068840  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA    $68,000.00

475375  02/01/2021 138092  STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA              $200.00

475376  02/01/2021 137914  JAMES B VAIR                       $60.00

475377  02/01/2021 143061  JUSTIN J VANDERVORT                $103.04

475378  02/01/2021 090678  VERITIV OPERATING CO               $673.14

Jan 26, 2021 10

20



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 475379  02/01/2021 141165  VNN INC                            $200.00

475380  02/01/2021 143249  ELIZABETH A WALLACE                $34.19

475381  02/01/2021 093008  BARBARA N WALLER                   $140.00

475382  02/01/2021 131112  LINDA M WALTERS                    $19.09

475383  02/01/2021 143250  CAYLEN C D WARREN                  $16.04

475384  02/01/2021 093772  WATKINS CONCRETE BLOCK CO. INC.    $46.50

475385  02/01/2021 141624  BOARD TRUSTREES NE STATE COLLEGE   $45.00

475386  02/01/2021 133438  HEIDI J WEAVER                     $81.77

475387  02/01/2021 141464  ANTHONY J WEERS                    $20.30

475388  02/01/2021 140945  LORETTA A WEGENER                  $159.00

475389  02/01/2021 143315  WEISSMAN'S THEATRICAL SUPPLIES INC $24.52

475390  02/01/2021 139185  WEST OMAHA WINSUPPLY CO            $865.82

475391  02/01/2021 107563  CAROL M WEST                       $124.72

475392  02/01/2021 099997  WESTSIDE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS         $464.00

475393  02/01/2021 139244  AMANDA L WHARTON-HUNT              $1,497.00

475394  02/01/2021 137485  WENDY A WIGHT                      $23.58

475395  02/01/2021 143354  LEO WILSON JR                      $45.48

475396  02/01/2021 142646  STEVEN WINSTON                     $75.00

475397  02/01/2021 143059  JORDAN C WORKMAN                   $37.00

475398  02/01/2021 096200  YOUNG & WHITE                      $30,554.62

475399  02/01/2021 142269  WHC NE LLC                         $7,396.60

475401  02/01/2021 137020  CHAD R ZIMMERMAN                   $224.25

475402  02/01/2021 136855  PAUL R ZOHLEN                      $20.70

475403  02/01/2021 135647  LACHELLE L ZUHLKE                  $53.88

E103022 02/01/2021 106436  AQUA-CHEM INC                      $3,937.30

E103023 02/01/2021 102727  B & H PHOTO                        $97.13

E103024 02/01/2021 135991  BAKER DISTRIBUTING CO LLC          $17.40

E103025 02/01/2021 099646  BARNES AND NOBLE BOOKSTORE         $741.00

Jan 26, 2021 11

21



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 E103026 02/01/2021 139474  SMA ENTERPRISES INC                $400.00

E103028 02/01/2021 136272  BEAR CONSTRUCTION INC              $14,505.00

E103029 02/01/2021 132475  BIO CORPORATION                    $230.02

E103031 02/01/2021 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $11,529.70

E103032 02/01/2021 099220  DICK BLICK CO                      $196.80

E103033 02/01/2021 019559  BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC      $4,776.67

E103034 02/01/2021 090270  UNITED DISTRIBUTORS  INC           $1,376.55

E103035 02/01/2021 135082  OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC  $92.00

E103036 02/01/2021 026057  CONTROL MASTERS INC                $10,549.36

E103037 02/01/2021 032050  D B NEBRASKA SERVICE CO.           $654.00

E103040 02/01/2021 033473  DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC             $691.85

E103041 02/01/2021 073231  DXP ENTERPRISES INC                $1,764.69

E103042 02/01/2021 038023  EGAN SUPPLY COMPANY                $427.07

E103043 02/01/2021 038100  CONSOLIDATED ELECTRICAL DISTR INC  $51.77

E103044 02/01/2021 132066  ENGINEERED CONTROLS INC            $108.00

E103045 02/01/2021 040537  WOLSELEY INVESTMENTS INC           $529.52

E103046 02/01/2021 106956  FERRELLGAS                         $14.95

E103047 02/01/2021 133919  FILTER SHOP INC                    $4,687.53

E103048 02/01/2021 133960  FIREGUARD INC                      $4,743.54

E103049 02/01/2021 041086  FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC               $150.35

E103051 02/01/2021 041100  FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC       $19,336.98

E103052 02/01/2021 140791  FRONTLINE PRIVATE SECURITY LLC     $400.00

E103054 02/01/2021 048786  HILLYARD INC                       $318.17

E103055 02/01/2021 049700  HUGHES TREE SERVICE                $23,420.00

E103056 02/01/2021 100928  J W PEPPER & SON INC.              $898.71

E103057 02/01/2021 135156  LAWSON PRODUCTS INC                $1,924.33

E103058 02/01/2021 137296  LIBERTY HARDWOODS INC              $440.80

E103059 02/01/2021 059470  LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC    $392.00

Jan 26, 2021 12

22



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 E103060 02/01/2021 060111  LOVELESS MACHINE & GRINDING SVC INC $89.00

E103061 02/01/2021 059560  MATHESON TRI-GAS INC               $48.66

E103062 02/01/2021 108227  MAX'S BODY SHOP INC                $212.00

E103063 02/01/2021 137947  MECHANICAL SALES PARTS INC         $2,056.00

E103064 02/01/2021 102493  MICHAEL TODD & CO. INC.            $189.04

E103065 02/01/2021 107539  MUELLER ROBAK LLC                  $15,000.00

E103066 02/01/2021 100883  MTI ENTERPRISES INC                $5,000.00

E103068 02/01/2021 068334  NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC            $5,979.36

E103069 02/01/2021 134725  OMAHA CASING CO INC                $1,088.00

E103070 02/01/2021 102967  PALOS SPORTS INC                   $243.57

E103071 02/01/2021 138907  PLIBRICO COMPANY LLC               $632.50

E103075 02/01/2021 078420  RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.        $43,515.30

E103076 02/01/2021 136847  RIVERSIDE TECHNOLOGIES INC         $2,490.00

E103077 02/01/2021 132808  SNYDER CHARLESON THERAPY SERVICES  $5,330.00

E103078 02/01/2021 071025  OMAHA TRUCK CENTER INC             $454.16

E103079 02/01/2021 137707  UTILITY TRENCHING INC              $1,950.00

E103080 02/01/2021 138759  VIA INC                            $3,729.75

E103081 02/01/2021 092323  VIRCO INC                          $2,917.94

E103082 02/01/2021 139738  WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ILLINOIS INC   $11,862.64

E103083 02/01/2021 093765  WATER ENGINEERING, INC.            $1,482.00

E103084 02/01/2021 139352  WORDMASTERS LLC                    $89.10

01 - Total $2,031,938.90

06 475094  02/01/2021 012989  APPLE COMPUTER INC                 $1,665.00

475103  02/01/2021 133480  BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY    $2,000.00

475126  02/01/2021 133970  CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS           $25,155.12

475127  02/01/2021 133589  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.               $89,768.00

475155  02/01/2021 132669  DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC            $420.00

475240  02/01/2021 058775  LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC      $2,648.12

Jan 26, 2021 13

23



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

06 E103075 02/01/2021 078420  RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.        $3,915.00

06 - Total $125,571.24

07 475078  02/01/2021 010040  A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC      $293.19

475103  02/01/2021 133480  BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY    $91,470.00

475123  02/01/2021 135245  BAHR VERMEER HAECKER ARCHITECTS    $22,916.50

475145  02/01/2021 131003  DAILY RECORD                       $35.80

475199  02/01/2021 143355  HOLLAND BASHAM ARCHITECTS INC      $37,318.20

475240  02/01/2021 058775  LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC      $44,847.58

475259  02/01/2021 142914  MARATHON REPROGRAPHICS INC         $2,729.00

475267  02/01/2021 136104  MECHANICAL SYSTEMS INC             $2,701.00

475283  02/01/2021 134532  MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC          $4,000.00

475325  02/01/2021 106416  RIFE CONSTRUCTION INC              $12,613.50

475327  02/01/2021 134824  ROOFING SOLUTIONS INC              $16,900.00

475332  02/01/2021 081880  SCHEMMER ASSOCIATES INC            $1,239.39

07 - Total $237,064.16

11 475069  01/21/2021 141708  ROBERT BOSCH TOOL CORP             $0.00

475074  01/21/2021 141708  ROBERT BOSCH TOOL CORP             $161.94

475093  02/01/2021 131265  JILL M ANDERSON                    $70.89

475137  02/01/2021 132443  CORNERSTONES OF CARE               $2,550.00

475222  02/01/2021 102451  INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE        $36,652.00

475246  02/01/2021 143358  LIGHTS OF HOPE                     $200.00

475326  02/01/2021 141708  ROBERT BOSCH TOOL CORP             $328.39

475355  02/01/2021 139843  STUDENT TRANSPORATION NEBRASKA INC $465.87

E103020 02/01/2021 140411  SCOMAC INC                         $657.48

E103021 02/01/2021 102832  AOI                                $449.72

E103076 02/01/2021 136847  RIVERSIDE TECHNOLOGIES INC         $4,980.00

11 - Total $46,516.29

14 475081  02/01/2021 097000  AETNA LIFE INSURANCE CO            $189,874.20

Jan 26, 2021 14

24



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Feb 1, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

14 475337  02/01/2021 142167  SCRIP POINT                        $7,948.75

14 - Total $197,822.95

17 475120  02/01/2021 019861  BRIGGS, INC.                       $6,017.50

475207  02/01/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $695.00

475245  02/01/2021 143155  LIBRARY FURNITURE INTERNATIONAL INC $6,339.00

475271  02/01/2021 064600  METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC $548.65

475277  02/01/2021 131328  MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY            $5,305.10

475288  02/01/2021 143368  NEARFALL LLC                       $2,025.00

475307  02/01/2021 143269  PATRIOT CRANE & RIGGING LLC        $5,160.00

475334  02/01/2021 142939  MEREDITH E SCHNEIDER               $156.40

475353  02/01/2021 142102  STERLING COMPUTERS CORPORATION     $165.00

475366  02/01/2021 106493  TRITZ PLUMBING, INC.               $3,740.31

E103025 02/01/2021 099646  BARNES AND NOBLE BOOKSTORE         $1,762.50

E103081 02/01/2021 092323  VIRCO INC                          $62.14

17 - Total $31,976.60

50 475221  02/01/2021 141934  KAITLIN KENNY                      $762.15

475389  02/01/2021 143315  WEISSMAN'S THEATRICAL SUPPLIES INC $5,282.19

475400  02/01/2021 143363  MARYSE ZEKPA                       $60.00

E103040 02/01/2021 033473  DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC             $1,929.22

E103053 02/01/2021 047856  HARCOURT OUTLINES INC              $149.76

E103066 02/01/2021 100883  MTI ENTERPRISES INC                $360.00

50 - Total $8,543.32

Overall - Total $2,679,433.46

Jan 26, 2021 15

25



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Millard Public School Level III/Ombudsman Plus Proposal 
 
 
MEETING DATE: February 1, 2021 

 
 
BACKGROUND/ 
DESCRIPTION: If approved by the Board of Education, beginning with the 

2021-2022 school year, Millard will enter into a contract with 
Ombudsman to run an Ombudsman Plus Level III Program for 
Millard Public Schools students with disabilities who need a Level 
3 placement.  

 
The cost of the new program will be off-set by reducing the expense 
related to students in other Level III Programs.  The program will be 
cost-neutral.  

  
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approve the Millard Public School Level III/Ombudsman Plus 

Proposal and authorize the Associate Superintendent of 
Educational Services to execute any and all documents related to 
the proposal. 

 
 
POLICY/ 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Strategy 3.2  Enhance alternative educational opportunities and 

support structures for students at risk of not being successful at 
school.  

 
Parameter:  We will always expect each student to set and 
achieve challenging educational and career goals tailored to his/her 
abilities, interests, and aspirations. 

 
 
RESPONSIBLE  
PERSONS: Dr. Heather Phipps and Dr. Terry Houlton 

 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S  
 

 

26



Millard Public School Level III/Ombudsman Plus Proposal 
 
BACKGROUND 
TITLE 92, NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, CHAPTER 51 (Rule 51) defines Level III 
Special Education Contractual Services as those special education and related services provided 
in an educational setting not operated by the school district or approved cooperative whose rates 
are approved by the Nebraska Department of Education. 
 
Program placement for students with disabilities is determined by the student’s Individualized 
Education Program (IEP).  In some cases, a decision is made that the special education programs 
available within the District are not adequate to meet the needs of the child.  In those cases, a 
Level III placement is made.  Historically we have partnered with many Level III providers 
based on the needs of the student. While these programs are of high quality, Millard does not 
determine the programming for students in these programs.  
 
Part of the work of Strategy 3.2 ( enhance alternative educational opportunities and support 
structures for students at risk of not being successful at school) was to review all available 
programming for our students.  It was determined that a new partnership could provide Millard 
with more control over programming for some of our students. 
 
PROPOSAL 
If approved by the Board of Education, beginning with the 2021-2022 school year, Millard will 
enter into a contract with Ombudsman to run an Ombudsman Plus Level III Program for Millard 
Public Schools students with disabilities who need a Level 3 placement.  
 
The cost of the new program will be off-set by reducing the expense related to students in other 
Level III Programs.  The program will be cost-neutral.  We would continue to use other Level III 
programs for students with other disability needs (e.g. Brook Valley North for students with low 
cognition/Autism and significant behavioral difficulties).  
 

Program Structure 

MPS Responsibility Ombudsman Responsibility 

Program Focus 
● MPS students with traditionally 

developing cognition but who have 
significant externalizing and 
internalizing behavioral difficulties 

● Students in grades 5-12 with an 
emphasis on 9th-12th graders 

 

Secure a Location  
● Two classrooms (10 students each) 
● One small group/social work area 
● PBIS student store area 
● Office  
● Furniture and technology to run the 

program 
 

27



 
 
COST 
20 programs slots at $500,000 per year 
 
 
 
 
 

Quality  
● Partner with Ombudsman to maintain 

curricular and instructional integrity 
with an emphasis on student growth 
and progress both behaviorally and 
academically. 

● Partner with Ombudsman from the 
time the student is placed in the 
program until they can be transitioned 
back to a MPS school.  

 
Student Identification/Placement 

● Students currently in Level III 
placements (i.e. Heartland, Brook 
Valley-South, Alpha, Boystown) 

● Students who are placed through their 
IEP Team process and in conjunction 
with the Special Education 
Department 

 

Staffing  
● 1 Program Director/Special Education 

Administrator 
● 2 Special Education Teachers 
● .5 Social Worker 

 
Curriculum 

● Provide students access to online 
curriculum opportunities similar to the 
current Ombudsman program. 

● Teachers will support and direct 
student learning. 

● Behavioral and social skills 
curriculum based in cognitive 
behavior therapy with enhanced 
reinforcement. 

 

28



 

AGENDA SUMMARY 

SHEET 

 

 
Agenda Item: Approval of Contract for Cather Elementary School Site Lighting 

Replacement 

 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2021 

 

 
Background/ This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond  

Description: issue. 

 

 Copies of the architect’s letter and the bid tab are attached.  A representative 

from Morrissey Engineering will be present to answer any questions. 

 

  

 

Action Desired: It is recommended that the contract for the Cather Elementary School Site 

Lighting Replacement be awarded to Schaefer Electric in the amount of 

$88,245 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute any 

and all documents related to such project.   

 

 
Policy / 

Strategic Plan N/A 

Reference: 

 

 

 
Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: 

29



 

 
January 19, 2021 
 
Millard Public Schools 
5606 South 147th Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 
Attn: Steve Mainelli 
 
Project #20226:  Cather Elementary Site Lighting Improvements 
RE: Bid Proposals dated January 14, 2021 
 
Mr. Mainelli: 
 
Bids were received for the Cather Elementary Site Lighting Improvement project at MPS Support Services 
Center on January 14th, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.  Per the attached bid tab, five bids were received.  The low 
base bid was submitted by Schaefer Electric in the amount of $79,495.  Schaefer has satisfactorily 
completed several projects with Morrissey Engineering and MPS in the past including work at Horizon 
Elementary and North High School.   
 
The bid amount of $79,495 is lower than the project estimate of $100,000.  The alternate bid of $8,750 
involves replacing building perimeter lighting, providing additional security around the site.   
 
Following discussions with district staff, we recommend awarding the bid to Schaefer Electric for both the 
base and alternate bid in the amount of $88,245 (eighty-eight thousand two hundred forty-five dollars).   
 
Schaefer indicated on their Bid Proposal they would finish by August 6th, 2021 per the specifications.   
 
Please advise if you require any additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jeff Hemje, PE 
 
Enclosure 
 

 

30



PROJECT:  MPS Cather Elementary Site Lighting Improvement

BID DATE: 1/14/2021

BID TIME: 10:00 AM

MEI PROJECT NO.: 20226

BIDDERS Base Bid Alternate #1 Addendum #1 Bid Bond Comments

Bids to replace the site lighting around Cather Elementary as described in construction documents dated 12/21/20

Verregger Electric

$10,500 

$20,000 

$155,400 $29,085 Yes Yes

Yes

$8,750 Yes

BID TABULATION

Downs Electric

Midwest Mechanical $120,000 Yes

$121,432 Yes Yes

Schaefer Electric $79,495 

Superior Lighting $130,500 $8,500 Yes Yes

Yes

31



 

 

 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Approval of Construction Documents for Morton Elementary School 

 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2021 

 

Background/ The progressive steps for construction projects are generally as follows: 

Description: 

1. Schematic Design (SD) * Board Meeting Presentation 

 - “50 thousand feet view” – initial design and cost estimates 

2. Design Development (DD) 

  - “10 thousand feet view” – refined design and cost estimates 

3. Construction Documents (CD) *Board Meeting Presentation 

 - Final design and cost estimates for contractors to bid the project. 

4. Bidding/Awarding of Contract (BA) * Board Meeting Presentation 

 - The receipt of bids and award of the construction contract. 

5. Contract Administration (CA) 

  - Supervision and documentation of the construction project. 

 

Attached are the Construction Documents for the Morton Elementary School 

project. Morton Elementary is one of the renovation projects budgeted in the 2020 

bond.   

 

The budget construction cost during the bond preparation process was $1,175,568.  

This total cost is spread over several bond categories as indicated below: 

 

Major Renovations:                $431,568 

Energy Efficiency:     $265,000 

Summer Projects:     $479,000 

Total                                                $1,175,568 

 

The Schematic Design Estimate was $1,264,387.  The Construction Documents 

Estimate is $1,257,512. 

 

BCDM Architects will be present to answer any questions. 

 

 

Action Desired: It is recommended that the construction documents for the Morton Elementary  

 School project be approved as submitted. 

 

Policy / 

Strategic Plan N/A 

Reference: 

 

Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:

32



T

CLASSROOM

165

CLASSROOM

166

CLASSROOM

167

CLASSROOM

170

CLASSROOM

183

CLASSROOM

182

STOR.

176

COAT ROOM

177 OFFICE

179

COOL DOWN

ROOM

180

COAT ROOM

181

COAT ROOM

184

CONFERENCE

186

CLASSROOM

188

CLASSROOM

189

CLASSROOM

190

CLASSROOM

191

MEN

E

WOMEN

F
GYM STORAGE

121

BOYS

120

GIRLS

119

BAND/

ORCHESTRA

G

GYM

122
MUSIC

125

STOR.

127

STOR.

124

TLT.

106

TLT.

108
WORK

105

NURSE

109

PRINCIPAL

A

RECEPTION

104

STOR.

194

MEDIA CENTER

197

CUST

174

WORK

198

OFFICE

197B

OFFICE

197C

STOR.

198A

OFFICE

B STOR.

C

STOR.

D

ELECT.

178

CLASSROOM

199

COAT ROOM

160

TLT.

195

LOUNGE

193

COAT ROOM

171

BOYS

173

GIRLS

175

WASH

172A

CORR.

133

CORR.

139

LOBBY

103

CORR.

187

CORR.

185

CORR.

192

CORR.

172

CORR.

169

VEST.

168

CORR.

140

CORR.

159

BOYS

158 GIRLS

157

WASH

159A

CORR.

162

ENTRY VEST.

1

CORR.

I

FAMILY

RESTROOM

196

'A'

'B'

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

REFINISH WOOD DOORS AND PAINT HM FRAME

PAINT HM DOORS AND HM FRAME

DEMO TACK WALL COVERING, PATCH GWB & PAINT

NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS

DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB

NEW EXTERIOR WINDOW SHADE

PAINT HM WINDOW FRAME

PAINT WALLS

NEW PORCELAIN TILE

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW CARPET TILE AT BUILT-IN DESK REMOVAL

CARPET MASCOT

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

NEW WALK-IN FREEZER

DEMO WALLPAPER & PAINT

NEW TOILET PARTITIONS AND ACCESSORIES

DEMO WALL TILE AND REPLACE WITH NEW PORCELAIN TILE

ADDITIONAL SCOPE NOT SHOWN ON PLAN:

- REPLACE FIRE ALARM SYSTEM - ENTIRE BUILDING

- REPLACE ONE DOMESTIC HOT WATER HEATER

NEW PORCELAIN TILE WAINSCOT

BCDM NO. 

MPS MORTON ELEMENTARY - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FEBRUARY 1, 20213015-04

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

FLOOR PLAN

33



T

KITCHEN

128

CLASSROOM

164

CLASSROOM

161

STOR.

156

COAT ROOM

155

WORK

153

CLASSROOM

141

CLASSROOM

134

FREEZER

129

CLASSROOM

138

ELECT.

154

CORR.

133

CORR.

139

CORR.

140

CORR.

159

CORR.

147

CORR.

162

CLASSROOM

150

OFFICE

152

COAT ROOM

151

COAT ROOM

148

CONFERENCE

146

CORR.

145

CLASSROOM

144

CLASSROOM

143

CLASSROOM

142

ART

135

CORR.

132

OFFICE

130

CUST.

131

10' - 0"

TLT.

136

TLT.

137

CLASSROOM

149

'A'

'B'

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

REFINISH WOOD DOORS AND PAINT HM FRAME

PAINT HM DOORS AND HM FRAME

DEMO TACK WALL COVERING, PATCH GWB & PAINT

NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS

DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB

NEW EXTERIOR WINDOW SHADE

PAINT HM WINDOW FRAME

PAINT WALLS

NEW PORCELAIN TILE

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW CARPET TILE AT BUILT-IN DESK REMOVAL

CARPET MASCOT

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

NEW WALK-IN FREEZER

DEMO WALLPAPER & PAINT

NEW TOILET PARTITIONS AND ACCESSORIES

DEMO WALL TILE AND REPLACE WITH NEW PORCELAIN TILE

ADDITIONAL SCOPE NOT SHOWN ON PLAN:

- REPLACE FIRE ALARM SYSTEM - ENTIRE BUILDING

- REPLACE ONE DOMESTIC HOT WATER HEATER

NEW PORCELAIN TILE WAINSCOT

BCDM NO. 

MPS MORTON ELEMENTARY - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FEBRUARY 1, 20213015-04

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

FLOOR PLAN

34



F F

R

165

166

167

170

183

182

176 177

179

180

181

184

186

188

189

190

191

E F
121

120119

G

122

125

127

124

106

108

105

109

A

104

196

194

197

174

198

197B

197C

198A

B

C

D

178

199

160

195

193

171

173 175

172A

133

139

103

187

185

192172

169

168

140159

158 157

159A

162

1

I

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC
7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC
9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

9' - 6" A.F.F.

ATC

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

1

'A'

'B'REFLECTED CEILING PLAN LEGEND

NEW ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING

NEW CLEANABLE ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING

EXISTING CEILING TO REMAIN

BCDM NO. 

MPS MORTON ELEMENTARY - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FEBRUARY 1, 20213015-04

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - AREA A CD BOE

35



R

128

131

130164

161

150

156 155

153

152

151

148

141

146

144

143

142

134

129

137
138

135

136

154

163

132

133

139

140159

145

147

162

149

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

7' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

9' - 0" A.F.F.

ATC

'A'

'B'

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN LEGEND

NEW ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING

NEW CLEANABLE ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING

EXISTING CEILING TO REMAIN

BCDM NO. 

MPS MORTON ELEMENTARY - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FEBRUARY 1, 20213015-04

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - AREA B CD BOE

36



T

7

A1-2

1

A1-3

2

A1-2

6

A1-2

5

A1-2

AREA: 

10,340 SF

AREA: 

11,755 SF

AREA: 

3,334 SF

6

A1-2

Sim

5

A1-2

Sim

6

A1-2

Sim5

A1-2

Sim

6

A1-2

Sim

5

A1-2

Sim
6

A1-2

Sim

FREEZER 

CONDENSING UNIT

1

1

10

1

1

4

4

4

4

4

2

11

5

5

5

5

5

7

7

7

5

TYP.

OPEN TO BELOW

6

A1-2

Sim

6

A1-2

Sim

5

A1-2

Sim

9

6

A1-2

Sim

5

A1-2

Sim

5

A1-2

Sim

11

11

11

11

1

1

5

1

5

5

5

5

5 5

1

TYP.

5

BCDM NO. 

MPS MORTON ELEMENTARY - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FEBRUARY 1, 20213015-04

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

ROOF PLAN

37



1/22/2021

DIVISION DESCRIPTION COST

1 GENERAL CONDITIONS 164,023$              

2 Existing Conditions -$                       

3 CONCRETE -$                       

4 MASONRY -$                       

5 METALS -$                       

6 WOOD PLASTICS & COMPOSITES -$                       

7 THERMAL / MOISTURE PROTECTION 354,000$              

8 DOORS & WINDOWS -$                       

9 FINISHES 232,467$              

10 SPECIALTIES 14,500$                 

11 EQUIPMENT 42,500$                 

12 FURNISHINGS 62,022$                 

13 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                       

14 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                       

21 FIRE SUPPRESSION -$                       

22 PLUMBING 260,000$              

23 HEATING VENTILATING & AIR CONDITIONING -$                       

26 ELECTRICAL 128,000$              

27 SPECIAL SYSTEMS -$                       

31 EARTHWORK -$                       

32 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS -$                       

TOTAL 1,257,512$           

MORTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL - 2020 BOND - INTERIOR RENOVATION

CD PROBABLE COST ESTIMATE

38



 

 

 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Approval of Construction Documents for Millard North Middle School 

 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2021 

 

Background/ The progressive steps for construction projects are generally as follows: 

Description: 

1. Schematic Design (SD) * Board Meeting Presentation 

 - “50 thousand feet view” – initial design and cost estimates 

2. Design Development (DD) 

  - “10 thousand feet view” – refined design and cost estimates 

3. Construction Documents (CD) *Board Meeting Presentation 

 - Final design and cost estimates for contractors to bid the project. 

4. Bidding/Awarding of Contract (BA) * Board Meeting Presentation 

 - The receipt of bids and award of the construction contract. 

5. Contract Administration (CA) 

  - Supervision and documentation of the construction project. 

 

Attached are the Construction Documents for the North Middle School project. 

North Middle School is one of the renovation projects budgeted in the 2020 bond.   

 

The budget construction cost during the bond preparation process was $2,045,485 

plus improvements in the learning commons area in the amount of $174,000 for a 

total of $2,219,485.  The Schematic Design Estimate is $2,073,266.  The 

Construction Documents Estimate is $2,143,517. 

 

BCDM Architects will be present to answer any questions. 

 

 

Action Desired: It is recommended that the construction documents for the North Middle School  

 project be approved as submitted. 

 

Policy / 

Strategic Plan N/A 

Reference: 

 

Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:

39



W
/D

SCIENCE

01

PREP

02
SCIENCE

03

CLASSROOM

04

CORR.

05

SCIENCE

06

SCIENCE

07

PREP

08

SCIENCE

09

CORR.

10

SCIENCE

11

PREP

12

SCIENCE

13

ELEC.

14 STORAGE

15

CORR.

16

CLASSROOM

17

CLASSROOM

18

CLASSROOM

19

CORR.

20

CLASSROOM

21

CLASSROOM

22

MEDIA

23

MEDIA CENTER

24

WORK

25

WOMEN

126 STOR.

106

CLASSROOM

107

CLASSROOM

108

CORR.

109

CORR.

119

CLASSROOM

120

CLASSROOM

121

CLASSROOM

122

CLASSROOM

123

CORR.

124

MEN

125

CORR.

127

ART

128

ART

129

CLASSROOM

130

CLASSROOM

132

CORR.

133

TLT.

131

CLASSROOM

136

STOR.

138

KILN

139

VEST.

140

CLASSROOM

141

CLASSROOM

142

CLASSROOM

143

CORR.

144

WORK

145

OFFICE

146

OFFICE

147

CLASSROOM

148

CLASSROOM

149

CORR.

150

CLASSROOM

151

CLASSROOM

152

CLASSROOM

153

FIRE SPRINKLER

154

CORR.

159

FCS CLASSROOM

161

CLASSROOM

162

STOR.

163 STOR.

160

SHOP

101*
STOR.

102*

STOR.

102A*

WOOD SHOP

103*

OFF.

104*

CORR.

105*

WOOD SHOP

106*

VEST.

00

STOR.

110*OFFICE

15A

TALL SHELVING

PRODUCTION

24A

A6-2
14

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

REFINISH WOOD DOORS AND PAINT HM FRAME

PAINT HM DOORS AND HM FRAME

DEMO TACK WALL COVERING, REPLACE WITH NEW GYP & PAINT

NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS

RESURFACING OPERABLE PARTITIONS

NEW EXTERIOR WINDOW SHADE

PAINT HM WINDOW FRAME

NEW PORCELAIN TILE

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

MEDIA CENTER UPDATES

NEW TOILET PARTITIONS AND ACCESSORIES

DEMO WALL TILE AND REPLACE WITH NEW PORCELAIN TILE

ADDITIONAL SCOPE NOT SHOWN ON PLAN:

- REPLACE FIRE ALARM SYSTEM - ENTIRE BUILDING

- REPAINT ALL PAINTED WALLS - ENTIRE BUILDING

REFINISH EPOXY COUNTERTOP

NEW WALK-OFF CARPET

CARPET MASCOT

REPLACED  LOCKERS

WORK ROOM REVISIONS

SERVING LINE UPGRADES

REPLACE EXISTING CASEWORK

REPLACE VINYL COMPOSITION TILE (VCT)

DEMO WALL

NEW WALL

REPLACE SHEET VINYL FLOORING (SVF)

FITNESS ROOM UPGRADES

'A' 'B'

BCDM NO. 

MPS NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FEBRUARY 1, 20213027-18

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

FLOOR PLAN

40



UP

CLASSROOM

26

CLASSROOM

27

CLASSROOM

28

CORR.

29

CLASSROOM

30

CLASSROOM

31

OFFICE

32

CONFERENCE

34

CORR.

35

CLASSROOM

36

CLASSROOM

37

CLASSROOM

38

NURSE

39

COT

39B

COT

39A

CONFERENCE

40

TLT.

41

TLT.

42

CUST.

44

MECH.

45

CUST.

45A

STOR.

45B

CORR.

46 CUST.

47
WEIGHT ROOM

48

OFFICE

50

SHOWER

51

OFFICE

52

COACH'S LOCKER

53

OFFICE

55

M LOCKER

56

VEST.

57

GYM

58

STOR.

59

LIFT

60

STAGE

61

STOR.

62

STOR.

63

CAFETERIA

64

CORR.

65

FREEZER

66

REF.

66A

TLT.

67

STOR.

68

KITCHEN

69

FAMILY TLT.

70

TLT.

71

CORR.

72 VEST.

73

STOR.

74

W LOCKERS

75

BAND

76

OFF.

77

INSTRUMENT STOR.

78

CORR.

79

OFF.

80

COSTUME

81

PRACTICE

82

ORCHESTRA

84

ENTRY VEST.

85

OFFICE

86

WORK

96

TLT.

88

LOUNGE

89TLT.

90

STOR.

91

OFFICE

92

RECEPTION

93

WAITING

94

LOBBY

98

OFF.

99
OFF.

100

RECEPTION

101

OFF.

102

CONF.

103

CLASSROOM

104

CLASSROOM

105

CORR.

109

CORR.

16

CLASSROOM

110

CLASSROOM

111

CLASSROOM

112

CORR.

113

WORK

114

OFFICE

115

OFFICE

116

CLASSROOM

117

CLASSROOM

118

CORR.

119

OFFICE

111*

SHOWER

75E

OFFICE

75B

SHOWER

75C

SHOWER

75D

TLT.

135

COPY

34A

OFFICE

87

MECH

70A

'A' 'B'

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

REFINISH WOOD DOORS AND PAINT HM FRAME

PAINT HM DOORS AND HM FRAME

DEMO TACK WALL COVERING, REPLACE WITH NEW GYP & PAINT

NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS

RESURFACING OPERABLE PARTITIONS

NEW EXTERIOR WINDOW SHADE

PAINT HM WINDOW FRAME

NEW PORCELAIN TILE

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

MEDIA CENTER UPDATES

NEW TOILET PARTITIONS AND ACCESSORIES

DEMO WALL TILE AND REPLACE WITH NEW PORCELAIN TILE

ADDITIONAL SCOPE NOT SHOWN ON PLAN:

- REPLACE FIRE ALARM SYSTEM - ENTIRE BUILDING

- REPAINT ALL PAINTED WALLS - ENTIRE BUILDING

REFINISH EPOXY COUNTERTOP

NEW WALK-OFF CARPET

CARPET MASCOT

REPLACED  LOCKERS

WORK ROOM REVISIONS

SERVING LINE UPGRADES

REPLACE EXISTING CASEWORK

REPLACE VINYL COMPOSITION TILE (VCT)

DEMO WALL

NEW WALL

REPLACE SHEET VINYL FLOORING (SVF)

FITNESS ROOM UPGRADES

BCDM NO. 

MPS NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FEBRUARY 1, 20213027-18

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

FLOOR PLAN

41



W
/D

CEILING WORK TO 

BE COMPLETED 

SUMMER 2021

CEILING WORK TO 

BE COMPLETED 

SUMMER 2022

01

02
03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14 15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

126

106

107

108

109

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

127128

129

130

132

133131

136

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

159

161162

163 160

101* 102*

102A*

103*

104*

105*

106*

00

110*

15A
EXPOSED 

TO DECK

'A' 'B'

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN LEGEND

NEW ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING - EXISTING LIGHTING

NEW CLEANABLE ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING - EXISTING LIGHTING

EXISTING CEILING TO REMAIN

BCDM NO. 

MPS NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FEBRUARY 1, 20213027-18

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - AREA 'A' CD BOE

42



F

CEILING WORK TO 

BE COMPLETED 

SUMMER 2021

CEILING WORK TO 

BE COMPLETED 

SUMMER 2022

FIRE SPRINKLER WORK TO BE 

COMPLETED SUMMER 2022

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

34

35

36

37

38

39

39B

39A

40

41

42

44

45

45A

45B

46

47
48

50

51

52

53

55

56

57

58

5960

6263

64

65

66

66A

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76
77

78

79

80

81

82

8485

86

96

88

89

9091

92

93

94

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

110

111

112

113

114

115116

117

118

111*

75E

75B
75C

75D

135

34A

'A' 'B'

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN LEGEND

NEW ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING - EXISTING LIGHTING

NEW CLEANABLE ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING - EXISTING LIGHTING

EXISTING CEILING TO REMAIN

BCDM NO. 

MPS NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FEBRUARY 1, 20213027-18

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - AREA 'B' CD BOE

43



1/22/2021

DIVISION DESCRIPTION COST

1 GENERAL CONDITIONS 344,210$              

2 Existing Conditions -$                      

3 CONCRETE -$                      

4 MASONRY 4,000$                  

5 METALS 6,000$                  

6 WOOD PLASTICS & COMPOSITES -$                      

7 THERMAL / MOISTURE PROTECTION -$                      

8 DOORS & WINDOWS 34,200$                

9 FINISHES 934,527$              

10 SPECIALTIES 257,050$              

11 EQUIPMENT

12 FURNISHINGS 197,850$              

13 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                      

14 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                      

21 FIRE SUPPRESSION 75,000$                

22 PLUMBING 20,000$                

23 HEATING VENTILATING & AIR CONDITIONING 35,000$                

26 ELECTRICAL 235,680$              

27 SPECIAL SYSTEMS -$                      

31 EARTHWORK -$                      

32 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS -$                      

TOTAL 2,143,517$          

NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - 2020 BOND - INTERIOR RENOVATION

CD PROBABLE COST ESTIMATE

44



 

AGENDA SUMMARY 

SHEET 

 

 
Agenda Item: Approval of Contract for Keith Lutz Horizon High School Dock and Service 

Drive Replacement 

 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2021 

 

 
Background/ This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond  

Description: issue. 

 

 Copies of the architect’s letter and the bid tab are attached.  A representative 

from Lamp Rynearson will be present to answer any questions. 

 

  

 

Action Desired: It is recommended that the contract for the Keith Lutz Horizon High School 

Dock and Service Drive Replacement be awarded to TR Construction in the 

amount of $204,225.67 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to 

execute any and all documents related to such project.   

 

 
Policy / 

Strategic Plan N/A 

Reference: 

 

 

 
Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: 

45



January 19, 2021 
 
 
 
Mr. Jeremy Madson 
Project Manager 
Millard Public Schools 
13906 F Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 

REFERENCE:  MPS Horizon High School 
Dock and Service Drive Replacement, Phase I 
Job No. 0120178.01-020/320 

 
Dear Mr. Madson: 
 
Bids were opened on Tuesday, January 19, 2021. The original project budget was $278,800.00. During scope definition 
and design, the engineer’s estimate for the project was $250,882.81.  TR Construction submitted the low bid of 
$204,225.67.  Bid tabs are enclosed.  
 
The low bidder has previously successfully completed this type of work for Millard Public Schools and is qualified to 
complete this project within the required time. We recommend award of the work to TR Construction. 
 
Please inform us if award of the work is to be made, so that we can make the necessary arrangements. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
LAMP RYNEARSON  

 
D. Joe Oetken, P.E. 
Vice President 
 
Enclosures 
 
Cg\L:\Engineering\0120178 MPS Horizon HS Dock and Service Drive Repl\DOCUMENTS\LETTERS\BIDPROP TR CONSTRUCTION 210119.docx 

46



MPS HORIZON HIGH SCHOOLS
DOCK SERVICE DRIVE REPLACEMENT

LAMP RYNEARSON
0120178.01-020/320

POLLARD/ZADINA

ADDENDUMS ISSUED 1
JANUARY 19, 2021 

PAGE 1 OF 2 

ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS 7,038.00 $7,038.00 7,000.00 $7,000.00 7,125.98 $7,125.98 11,900.00 $11,900.00 12,000.00 $12,000.00 11,250.00 $11,250.00 2,500.00 $2,500.00
2 CLEARING AND GRUBBING 1 LS 1,150.00 $1,150.00 1,150.00 $1,150.00 927.69 $927.69 4,000.00 $4,000.00 1,500.00 $1,500.00 2,000.00 $2,000.00 1,500.00 $1,500.00
3 GENERAL GRADING AND SHAPING 1 LS 4,002.00 $4,002.00 2,300.00 $2,300.00 6,766.68 $6,766.68 4,000.00 $4,000.00 5,500.00 $5,500.00 3,000.00 $3,000.00 1,500.00 $1,500.00
4 EXPLORATORY EXCAVATION (ASSUMED) 5 HR 150.00 $750.00 230.00 $1,150.00 327.42 $1,637.10 125.00 $625.00 200.00 $1,000.00 250.00 $1,250.00 200.00 $1,000.00
5 COMMON EARTH EXCAVATION 300 CY 17.30 $5,190.00 13.80 $4,140.00 10.92 $3,276.00 15.00 $4,500.00 15.50 $4,650.00 16.00 $4,800.00 10.00 $3,000.00

6 EARTHWORK (HAUL-OFF) 50 CY
16.74 $837.00 23.00 $1,150.00 17.91 $895.50 20.00 $1,000.00 25.00 $1,250.00 25.00 $1,250.00 200.00 $10,000.00

7
REMOVE AND REPLACE UNSUITABLE
MATERIAL (ASSUMED)

50 CY
57.00 $2,850.00 57.50 $2,875.00 36.46 $1,823.00 35.00 $1,750.00 50.00 $2,500.00 60.00 $3,000.00 40.00 $2,000.00

8 REMOVE PAVEMENT 2,840 SY
7.62 $21,640.80 8.28 $23,515.20 6.54 $18,573.60 8.00 $22,720.00 8.00 $22,720.00 9.00 $25,560.00 9.95 $28,258.00

9 REMOVE SIDEWALK 170 SF 1.82 $309.40 0.58 $98.60 1.65 $280.50 2.00 $340.00 3.00 $510.00 1.00 $170.00 1.00 $170.00
10 REMOVE CURB RAMP 85 SF 2.02 $171.70 0.58 $49.30 1.65 $140.25 2.00 $170.00 4.00 $340.00 1.00 $85.00 2.00 $170.00
11 CONSTRUCT PCC FLUME 100 SF 14.40 $1,440.00 20.00 $2,000.00 13.71 $1,371.00 10.00 $1,000.00 12.00 $1,200.00 20.00 $2,000.00 25.00 $2,500.00
12 SAW-CUT PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH 32 LF 5.82 $186.24 11.50 $368.00 10.92 $349.44 5.00 $160.00 8.00 $256.00 20.00 $640.00 6.00 $192.00

13
REMOVE AND REPLACE BOTTOM LANDING
OF STEPS

1 LS 673.00 $673.00 575.00 $575.00 1,581.37 $1,581.37 2,000.00 $2,000.00 700.00 $700.00 750.00 $750.00 1,500.00 $1,500.00

14 SUBGRADE PREPARATION 3,181 SY
2.08 $6,616.48 2.07 $6,584.67 2.32 $7,379.92 3.00 $9,543.00 3.00 $9,543.00 2.60 $8,270.60 1.80 $5,725.80

15 CONSTRUCT 7" PCC PAVEMENT 3,160 SY 41.60 $131,456.00 42.95 $135,722.00 48.44 $153,070.40 44.50 $140,620.00 49.00 $154,840.00 58.00 $183,280.00 63.00 $199,080.00
16 CONSTRUCT 5" PCC SIDEWALK 190 SF 5.86 $1,113.40 4.95 $940.50 11.13 $2,114.70 6.00 $1,140.00 7.50 $1,425.00 5.00 $950.00 6.00 $1,140.00
17 CONSTRUCT 6" PCC CURB RAMP 85 SF 8.07 $685.95 15.00 $1,275.00 10.04 $853.40 10.00 $850.00 9.00 $765.00 14.00 $1,190.00 10.00 $850.00

18 CONSTRUCT DETECTABLE WARNING PANEL 24 SF
33.00 $792.00 37.50 $900.00 29.33 $703.92 30.00 $720.00 50.00 $1,200.00 45.00 $1,080.00 35.00 $840.00

19
DRILL AND GROUT NO. 5 X 2'-6" TIE BARS @
36" CENTERS

20 EA
17.70 $354.00 25.00 $500.00 10.47 $209.40 8.00 $160.00 15.00 $300.00 18.00 $360.00 8.00 $160.00

20
CONSTRUCT PERMANENT PAINT MARKING -
4" 

54 LF
5.75 $310.50 1.25 $67.50 7.10 $383.40 4.00 $216.00 10.00 $540.00 3.50 $189.00 6.00 $324.00

21 CONSTRUCT ROCK ACCESS ROAD 30 TN
45.00 $1,350.00 80.50 $2,415.00 28.93 $867.90 30.00 $900.00 40.00 $1,200.00 75.00 $2,250.00 25.00 $750.00

TR CONSTRUCTION DPS LLC
CARLEY CONSTRUCTION 

LLC
MACKIE CONSTRUCTION 

INC
DAEDALUS CONSTRUCTION

APPROXIMATE 
QUANTITY

METRO DRIVEWAY 
REPLACEMENT LLC

MIDWEST DCM

1,000.00

24,282.00

700.00

8,216.00

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE:$250,882.81
BID BOND AMOUNT:5% OF TOTAL BID AMOUNT cg\L:\Engineering\_Projects\TABS\2021\SCHOOLS\MPS HORIZON HIGH SCHOOL DOCK SERVICE DRIVE.xlsx

47



MPS HORIZON HIGH SCHOOLS
DOCK SERVICE DRIVE REPLACEMENT

LAMP RYNEARSON
0120178.01-020/320

POLLARD/ZADINA

ADDENDUMS ISSUED 1
JANUARY 19, 2021 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

TR CONSTRUCTION DPS LLC
CARLEY CONSTRUCTION 

LLC
MACKIE CONSTRUCTION 

INC
DAEDALUS CONSTRUCTION

APPROXIMATE 
QUANTITY

METRO DRIVEWAY 
REPLACEMENT LLC

MIDWEST DCM

22 BARRICADING 1 LS 590.00 $590.00 1,200.00 $1,200.00 879.75 $879.75 1,300.00 $1,300.00 500.00 $500.00 500.00 $500.00 250.00 $250.00

23 SEEDING, TYPE "A" 0.15 AC
4,508.00 $676.20 7,513.00 $1,126.95 3,328.77 $499.32 6,010.00 $901.50 5,000.00 $750.00 7,300.00 $1,095.00 0.25 $0.04

24 UTILITY RELOCATION ALLOWANCE 1 LS 5,000.00 $5,000.00 5,000.00 $5,000.00 5,000.00 $5,000.00 5,000.00 $5,000.00 5,000.00 $5,000.00 5,000.00 $5,000.00 5,000.00 $5,000.00

25 ROLLED EROSION CONTROL, TYPE II 6,500 SY
1.32 $8,580.00 1.55 $10,075.00 0.19 $1,235.00 2.00 $13,000.00 1.80 $11,700.00 1.50 $9,750.00 1.80 $11,700.00

26
REMOVE, SALVAGE AND REINSTALL TURF
REINFORCEMENT MATTING

1 LS
463.00 $463.00 1,725.00 $1,725.00 1,200.54 $1,200.54 1,000.00 $1,000.00 4,200.00 $4,200.00 350.00 $350.00 $0.00

TOTAL BID AMOUNT $204,225.67 $213,902.72 $219,145.76 $229,515.50 $246,089.00 $270,019.60 $280,109.84

1,306.80

1,300.00

260,490.60269,965.00

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE:$250,882.81
BID BOND AMOUNT:5% OF TOTAL BID AMOUNT cg\L:\Engineering\_Projects\TABS\2021\SCHOOLS\MPS HORIZON HIGH SCHOOL DOCK SERVICE DRIVE.xlsx

48



 

AGENDA SUMMARY 

SHEET 

 

 
Agenda Item: Approval of Contract for South High School Parking Lot Replacement 

Phase I 

 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2021 

 

 
Background/ This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond  

Description: issue. 

 

 Copies of the architect’s letter and the bid tab are attached.  A representative 

from Lamp Rynearson will be present to answer any questions. 

 

  

 

Action Desired: It is recommended that the contract for the South High School Parking Lot 

Replacement Phase I be awarded to TR Construction in the amount of 

$405,546.03 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute 

any and all documents related to such project.   

 

 
Policy / 

Strategic Plan N/A 

Reference: 

 

 

 
Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: 

49



 

 

January 22, 2021 
 
 
 
Mr. Jeremy Madson 
Project Manager 
Millard Public Schools 
13906 F Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 

REFERENCE:  MPS South High School 
South Parking Lot Replacement, Phase I 
Job No. 0120164.01-020/320 

 
Dear Mr. Madson: 
 
Bids were opened on Thursday, January 21, 2021. The original project budget was $354,750.00.  
During scope definition and design, it was decided to change the phasing of the overall project scope 
from three total phases to two total phases, thereby increasing the engineer’s estimate for the project 
to $564,373.44.  TR Construction submitted the low bid of $405,546.03.  Bid tabs are enclosed.  
 
The low bidder has previously successfully completed this type of work for Millard Public Schools and 
is qualified to complete this project within the required time. We recommend award of the work to TR 
Construction. 
 
Please inform us if award of the work is to be made, so that we can make the necessary arrangements. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
LAMP RYNEARSON  

 
D. Joe Oetken, P.E. 
Vice President 
 
Enclosures 
 
Cg\L:\Engineering\0120164 MPS South HS-South Parking Lot Replace\DOCUMENTS\LETTERS\BIDPROP TR CONSTRUCTION 
210122.docx 

50



MPS MILLARD SOUTH HIGH SCHOOL
SOUTH PARKING LOT RECONSTRUCTION 2021

LAMP RYNEARSON
0120164.01/020/320

WARD/ZADINA

ADDENDUMS ISSUED 1
JANUARY 21, 2021 

PAGE 1 OF 2 

ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS 17,627.00 $17,627.00 7,000.00 $7,000.00 11,900.00 $11,900.00 3,945.20 $3,945.20 8,500.00 $1,250.00 10,994.00 $10,994.00 1,250.00 $1,250.00
2 EXPLORATORY EXCAVATION (ASSUMED) 20 HR 149.00 $2,980.00 218.00 $4,360.00 125.00 $2,500.00 330.99 $6,619.80 100.00 $2,000.00 337.00 $6,740.00 250.00 $5,000.00
3 GENERAL GRADING AND SHAPING 1 LS 7,849.00 $7,849.00 4,360.00 $4,360.00 10,000.00 $10,000.00 9,256.50 $9,256.50 4,800.00 $4,800.00 9,430.00 $9,430.00 5,000.00 $5,000.00
4 EARTHWORK (HAUL-OFF) 700 CY 17.10 $11,970.00 21.80 $15,260.00 13.50 $9,450.00 14.03 $9,821.00 24.00 $16,800.00 14.30 $10,010.00 25.00 $17,500.00
5 SUBGRADE PREPARATION 5,616 SY 2.25 $12,636.00 1.96 $11,007.36 1.95 $10,951.20 1.91 $10,726.56 2.25 $12,636.00 1.95 $10,951.20 2.25 $12,636.00
6 SAWCUT PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH 350 LF 3.88 $1,358.00 3.27 $1,144.50 5.00 $1,750.00 3.93 $1,375.50 3.70 $1,295.00 11.20 $3,920.00 3.75 $1,312.50
7 REMOVE PAVEMENT AND INTEGRAL CURB 4,849 SY 6.87 $33,312.63 5.88 $28,512.12 6.00 $29,094.00 6.06 $29,384.94 6.50 $31,518.50 6.15 $29,821.35 6.75 $32,730.75
8 REMOVE CURB RAMP 180 SF 2.42 $435.60 0.54 $97.20 1.50 $270.00 1.13 $203.40 1.00 $180.00 1.15 $207.00 0.63 $113.40
9 REMOVE SIDEWALK 6,150 SF 0.93 $5,719.50 0.54 $3,321.00 0.80 $4,920.00 0.77 $4,735.50 0.80 $4,920.00 0.78 $4,797.00 0.63 $3,874.50

10 REMOVE AND REPLACE CURB INLET TOP 2 EA 2,996.00 $5,992.00 2,500.00 $5,000.00 2,500.00 $5,000.00 2,580.60 $5,161.20 2,750.00 $5,500.00 4,131.00 $8,262.00 3,750.00 $7,500.00

11
REMOVE, SALVAGE AND REINSTALL BIKE 
RACKS

2 EA
510.00 $1,020.00 500.00 $1,000.00 400.00 $800.00 268.07 $536.14 250.00 $500.00 689.00 $1,378.00 125.00 $250.00

12 CONSTRUCT THICKENED EDGE 100 LF 12.41 $1,241.00 20.00 $2,000.00 8.00 $800.00 6.83 $683.00 15.00 $1,500.00 15.50 $1,550.00 12.50 $1,250.00

13 CONSTRUCT 7" PCC CURB RAMP 180 SF 7.01 $1,261.80 15.00 $2,700.00 10.00 $1,800.00 6.24 $1,123.20 15.00 $2,700.00 17.20 $3,096.00 6.25 $1,125.00

14 CONSTRUCT DETECTABLE WARNING PANEL 8 SF
33.00 $264.00 35.00 $280.00 45.00 $360.00 23.93 $191.44 45.00 $360.00 90.60 $724.80 62.50 $500.00

15 CONSTRUCT 7" PC CONCRETE PAVEMENT 4,850 SY 39.46 $191,381.00 42.94 $208,259.00 40.00 $194,000.00 44.64 $216,504.00 52.00 $252,200.00 51.90 $251,715.00 56.79 $275,431.50

16 CONSTRUCT 5" PC CONCRETE SIDEWALK 6,890 SF
4.05 $27,904.50 4.95 $34,105.50 6.75 $46,507.50 5.67 $39,066.30 5.00 $34,450.00 5.15 $35,483.50 5.63 $38,790.70

17
DRILL AND EPOXY #5 X 2'-6" TIE BARS AT 
36" CENTERS

115 EA
18.80 $2,162.00 15.00 $1,725.00 8.00 $920.00 6.38 $733.70 15.00 $1,725.00 23.10 $2,656.50 5.00 $575.00

18
CONSTRUCT PERMANENT PAINT MARKING - 
4" STALLS

2,600 LF
1.09 $2,834.00 0.50 $1,300.00 0.65 $1,690.00 1.25 $3,250.00 0.85 $2,210.00 0.53 $1,378.00 1.66 $4,316.00

19
CONSTRUCT PERMANENT PAINT MARKING - 
RED FIRE LANE

500 LF
1.17 $585.00 1.15 $575.00 1.10 $550.00 1.69 $845.00 1.50 $750.00 0.48 $240.00 1.66 $830.00

20
ADJUST MANHOLE TO GRADE AND 
CONSTRUCT EXTERNAL FRAME SEAL

2 EA
572.00 $1,144.00 500.00 $1,000.00 900.00 $1,800.00 959.31 $1,918.62 350.00 $700.00 598.00 $1,196.00 1,000.00 $2,000.00

21 BARRICADING 1 LS 6,002.00 $6,002.00 1,200.00 $1,200.00 1,300.00 $1,300.00 5,149.98 $5,149.98 1,000.00 $1,000.00 2,858.00 $2,858.00 6,000.00 $6,000.00

22
REMOVE, SALVAGE AND REINSTALL SIGN 
AND POST

5 EA
321.00 $1,605.00 500.00 $2,500.00 250.00 $1,250.00 162.65 $813.25 135.00 $675.00 619.00 $3,095.00 100.00 $500.00

APPROXIMATE 
QUANTITY

OMNI ENGINEERING CORE CONSTRUCTION LLCTR CONSTRUCTION DPS LLC MIDWEST DCMDAEDALUS CONSTRUCTION
MACKIE CONSTRUCTION 

INC

38,790.70

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE:$564,373.44
BID BOND AMOUNT:5% OF TOTAL BID AMOUNT LW\L:\Engineering\_Projects\TABS\2021\SCHOOLS\MPS MILLARD SOUTH HIGH .xlsx

51



MPS MILLARD SOUTH HIGH SCHOOL
SOUTH PARKING LOT RECONSTRUCTION 2021

LAMP RYNEARSON
0120164.01/020/320

WARD/ZADINA

ADDENDUMS ISSUED 1
JANUARY 21, 2021 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

APPROXIMATE 
QUANTITY

OMNI ENGINEERING CORE CONSTRUCTION LLCTR CONSTRUCTION DPS LLC MIDWEST DCMDAEDALUS CONSTRUCTION
MACKIE CONSTRUCTION 

INC

23
CONSTRUCT 6' TALL CHAINLINK FENCE TO 
MATCH EXISTING

25 LF
118.00 $2,950.00 28.00 $700.00 30.00 $750.00 140.25 $3,506.25 45.00 $1,125.00 45.70 $1,142.50 100.00 $2,500.00

24 UTILITY RELOCATION ALLOWANCE 1 LS 15,000.00 $15,000.00 15,000.00 $15,000.00 15,000.00 $15,000.00 15,000.00 $15,000.00 15,000.00 $15,000.00 15,000.00 $15,000.00 15,000.00 $15,000.00

25 NON-IRRIGATED TURF SEED 0.5 AC
2,200.00 $1,100.00 3,270.00 $1,635.00 7,530.00 $3,765.00 7,326.66 $3,663.33 7,800.00 $3,900.00 2,063.00 $1,031.50 2,500.00 $1,250.00

26 ROLLED EROSION CONTROL, TYPE II 1,000 SY 1.10 $1,100.00 2.50 $2,500.00 1.85 $1,850.00 1.52 $1,520.00 1.75 $1,750.00 1.35 $1,350.00 0.50 $500.00
27 INLET PROTECTION 1 EA 293.00 $293.00 218.00 $218.00 352.00 $352.00 213.18 $213.18 150.00 $150.00 217.00 $217.00 3,500.00 $3,500.00
28 SITE LIGHTING 1 LS 39,622.00 $39,622.00 49,213.50 $49,213.50 49,150.00 $49,150.00 68,554.20 $68,554.20 47,500.00 $47,500.00 51,606.00 $51,606.00 57,275.00 $57,275.00
29 CONDITION PLANTING SOIL 8,900 SF 0.48 $4,272.00 0.31 $2,759.00 0.60 $5,340.00 0.57 $5,073.00 0.75 $6,675.00 0.23 $2,047.00 0.30 $2,670.00

30
APPLY GRANULAR PRE-EMERGENT 
HERBICIDE

2,350 SF
0.06 $141.00 0.04 $94.00 1.03 $2,420.50 0.04 $94.00 0.10 $235.00 0.06 $141.00 0.08 $188.00

31 INSTALL PRAIRIE GOLD ASPEN 3 EA 275.00 $825.00 512.30 $1,536.90 393.00 $1,179.00 437.58 $1,312.74 475.00 $1,425.00 325.00 $975.00 775.00 $2,325.00
32 INSTALL FAIRVIEW JUNIPER 2 EA 275.00 $550.00 359.70 $719.40 234.00 $468.00 258.06 $516.12 280.00 $560.00 273.00 $546.00 450.00 $900.00
33 INSTALL BUFFALO JUNIPER 15 EA 33.00 $495.00 53.41 $801.15 55.00 $825.00 50.49 $757.35 55.00 $825.00 37.40 $561.00 75.00 $1,125.00

34 INSTALL PRAIRIE DROPSEED 78 EA
11.00 $858.00 17.44 $1,360.32 20.00 $1,560.00 17.96 $1,400.88 22.00 $1,716.00 8.05 $627.90 22.50 $1,755.00

35 HARDWOOD MULCH 24 CY
44.00 $1,056.00 45.78 $1,098.72 40.00 $960.00 42.64 $1,023.36 47.00 $1,128.00 45.10 $1,082.40 81.25 $1,950.00

TOTAL BID AMOUNT $405,546.03 $414,342.67 $421,232.20 $454,678.64 $461,658.50 $476,830.65 $509,423.35

1,250.00

2,681.25

512,330.94

2,681.25

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE:$564,373.44
BID BOND AMOUNT:5% OF TOTAL BID AMOUNT LW\L:\Engineering\_Projects\TABS\2021\SCHOOLS\MPS MILLARD SOUTH HIGH .xlsx

52



 

 

 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Approval of Construction Documents for Cather Elementary School 

 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2021 

 

Background/ The progressive steps for construction projects are generally as follows: 

Description: 

1. Schematic Design (SD) * Board Meeting Presentation 

 - “50 thousand feet view” – initial design and cost estimates 

 2. Design Development (DD) 

  - “10 thousand feet view” – refined design and cost estimates 

 3. Construction Documents (CD) *Board Meeting Presentation 

 - Final design and cost estimates for contractors to bid the project. 

 4. Bidding/Awarding of Contract (BA) * Board Meeting Presentation 

 - The receipt of bids and award of the construction contract. 

 5. Contract Administration (CA) 

  - Supervision and documentation of the construction project. 

 

Attached are the Construction Documents for the Cather Elementary School 

project. Cather Elementary is one of the renovation projects budgeted in the 2020 

bond.  The budget construction cost during the bond preparation process was 

$586,555.  The Schematic Design estimate was $666,818. The Construction 

Documents estimate is $621,113. 

 

Schemmer Architects will be present to answer any questions.  

 

 

Action Desired: It is recommended that the construction documents for the Cather Elementary  

 School project be approved as submitted. 

 

Policy / 

Strategic Plan N/A 

Reference: 

 

Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Superintendent’s Signature

53



CLASSROOM

167

CLASSROOM

166

CLASSROOM

165

CLASSROOM

157

CLASSROOM

152

CLASSROOM

144

CLASSROOM

139

CLASSROOM

156

CLASSROOM

153

CLASSROOM

155

CLASSROOM

154

CLASSROOM

143

CLASSROOM

140

SMALL GROUP

164

ACTIVITY

161 ACTIVITY

149

SMALL GROUP

151

CLASSROOM

142

CONFERENCE

141

CORE ACAD

134B

PRINCIPAL

135

SMALL

GROUP

138A

WORKROOM

205

NETWORK

204

CONFERENCE

202

CLASSROOM

207

STORAGE

145

ACTIVITY

137

ACTIVITY

136

ACTIVITY

138

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

1
3
7
A

CIRCULATION

201A

MEDIA CENTER

201

ACTIVITY

159

A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

1
6
3

A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

1
6
0

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

1
6
2

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

1
6
0
A

STORAGE

158

ACTIVITY

146A

A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

1
5
0

A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

1
4
7

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

1
5
0
A

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

1
4
8

CORRIDOR

134C

AREA

AREA

A

B

REPLACE OPERABLE 

PARTITION

0

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

12 24 36 ''''

INTERIOR RENOVATIONS - AREA A

PROJECT #8: CATHER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

DEMO TACK WALL COVERING, REPLACE WITH NEW GYP & PAINT

NEW TACK BORADS / WHITE BOARDS

NEW WOOD DOORS & PAINT HM FRAME

PAINT HM FRAME AND HM DOORS

PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE

PAINT WALLS

NEW CARPET

NEW VCT 

NEW WALK-OFF CARPET

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW DESK

DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB

PAINT HM FRAME

PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES 

50 FIRST FEET REMODEL

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

AREA A

AREA B
NORTH

54



CLASSROOM

116

T.

117A

SMALL

GROUP

117B

CLASSROOM

120

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

1
1
5

SMALL

GROUP

119A

SMALL

GROUP

118

S
M

A
L

L
 G

R
O

U
P

1
1
5
A

PE OFFICE

114

IDF

114B

STORAGE

118A
STAGE

112

STAFF LOUNGE

111

T.

111C

STAIR

110

WOMEN

113A

MEN

113B

CORRIDOR

113

CLOSET

114A

MULTI-PURPOSE

109

KITCHEN

108

KIDS

NETWORK

109A

T.

108B

MECH

107B

MECH EQUIP

107

TRASH

106

FOOD

STORAGE

105

CLASSROOM

103

CLASSROOM

102

T.

102B

T.

103B

STORAGE

103A

CORRIDOR

104

VOCAL MUSIC

121

STORAGE

121A

TEL

111B

CLOSET

111A

CLASSROOM

127

CLASSROOM

128

MAIN ENTRY

101CORRIDOR

124

CORRIDOR

124D

CORRIDOR

124C

GIRLS

131

BOYS

130

BOYS

125

GIRLS

126

CORRIDOR

124F

CORRIDOR

124E

CORRIDOR

108A

PROJECTS

123

CLASSROOM

122

JC

124A

ACTIVITY

119B

A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

1
1
9

PRODUCTION

132

JC

124B

T.

132A

T.

133A

HEALTH

133

RECEPTION

OFFICE

134

CORRIDOR

134A

STORAGE

102A

CORRIDOR

108C

FAMILY R.R.

101A

AREA

AREA

A

B

0

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

12 24 36 ''''

INTERIOR RENOVATIONS - AREA B

08042.001

PROJECT #8: CATHER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

1/21/2021

AREA A

AREA B

NORTHDEMO TACK WALL COVERING, REPLACE WITH NEW GYP & PAINT

NEW TACK BORADS / WHITE BOARDS

NEW WOOD DOORS & PAINT HM FRAME

PAINT HM FRAME AND HM DOORS

PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE

PAINT WALLS

NEW CARPET

NEW VCT 

NEW WALK-OFF CARPET

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW DESK

DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB

PAINT HM FRAME

PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES 

50 FIRST FEET REMODEL

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

55



2/1/2021

DIVISION DESCRIPTION COST

1 GENERAL CONDITIONS 35,108$               

2 Existing Conditions 32,898$               

3 CONCRETE 1,851$                 

4 MASONRY -$                      

5 METALS 4,537$                 

6 WOOD PLASTICS & COMPOSITES 1,567$                 

7 THERMAL / MOISTURE PROTECTION -$                      

8 DOORS & WINDOWS 34,694$               

9 FINISHES 327,265$             

10 SPECIALTIES 85,133$               

11 EQUIPMENT

12 FURNISHINGS 54,039$               

13 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                      

14 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                      

21 FIRE SUPPRESSION -$                      

22 PLUMBING 28,369$               

23 HEATING VENTILATING & AIR CONDITIONING 1,492$                 

26 ELECTRICAL 14,159$               

27 SPECIAL SYSTEMS -$                      

31 EARTHWORK -$                      

32 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS -$                      

TOTAL 621,113$             

MPS Project #8: Cather Elementary School

CD PROBABLE COST ESTIMATE

56



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date: 

Background:  

Description:  

Action Desired:  

Policy /  

Strategic Plan Reference: 

Responsible Person(s):  

Human Resources 

February 1, 2021

Personnel Items: (1) Recommendation to Hire; (2) Resignation 
Agenda; (3) Voluntary Separation Program (VSP)

Approval 

N/A 

Dr. Kevin Chick 
Associate Superintendent of Human Resources

Superintendent’s Signature:  

57



February 1, 2021 

TEACHER RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

Recommend: The following teachers be hired for the 2021-2022 school year: 

1. Brady J. Hohl – MA – Hasting College. Business teacher at Millard West High
School for the 2021-2022 school year.

2. Nicholas M. Everett – BA – University of Louisville, KY. Math teacher at Millard
North High School for the 2021-2022 school year.

3. Misty D. Graham – BA+30 – University of Northern Iowa.  English Language
Learner teacher at Millard South High School for the 2021-2022 school year.
Previous Experience: Topeka Kansas (2016-present); Dove School of Tulsa, Tulsa,
OK (2012-2016); Cardinal Middle/High School, Eldon, Iowa (2002-2007)

4. Abbie J. Sivinski – BA+36 – Arizona State University.  Counselor at Millard North
High School for the 2021-2022 school year.

58



February 1, 2021 

RESIGNATIONS 

Recommend: The following resignation(s) be accepted: 

1. Tina D. Clark – Grade 4 teacher at Cody Elementary School.  Resigning at the end of the
2020-2021 school year because of family relocation.

2. Kaeleb P. Bessmer – Resource teacher at Millard North High School. Resigning at the end of
the 2020-2021 school year for personal reasons.

3. Andrew R. Schulze -- Teacher Librarian at Norris Elementary School. Resigned effective
immediately for personal reasons.

59



February 1, 2021 

Voluntary Separation Program (VSP) 

Recommend: The following qualified candidates be approved to participate in the District’s 
Voluntary Separation Program. 

21. Christine M. Hug Lehr – Teacher Librarian at Central Middle School
~ 33 years of service

22. Connie E. Kozak – Health and Family Consumer Science teacher at Russell Middle
School
~20 years of service

60



 

 

  

 

Food Services 
Executive Summary 

 

 
 August 2020 – December 2020 

 

 

61



School Year Participation 
Below is a summary comparison of daily meals served at each of the grade levels for 
the months of August through December.  
 
Elementary Participation 
 

Elementary Breakfast Participation 
 

  19/20  20/21    Variance 

School  

Total 
Breakfast 

Total Daily 
Breakfasts   

 Total 
Curbside 

Total 
Weekend 

Total In-
school Total 

Daily 
Total   

Daily 
Total 

Abbott  6,201  70   0  1,580  2,669  4,249  51   (20) 

Ackerman  10,027  114   0  2,399  6,895  9,294  111   (3) 

Aldrich  4,809  55   0  799  3,509  4,308  51   (3) 

Black Elk  8,913  101   0  478  7,761  8,239  98   (3) 

Bryan  9,443  107   0  319  8,819  9,138  109   1  

Cather  4,223  48   0  1,153  5,704  6,857  82   34  

Cody  6,905  78   0  697  7,247  7,944  95   16  

Cottonwood  7,397  84   0  913  5,719  6,632  79   (5) 

Disney  12,884  146   0  2,225  10,678  12,903  154   7  

Ezra  7,439  85   0  1,733  7,749  9,482  113   28  

Harvey Oaks  6,864  78   0  1,840  4,373  6,213  74   (4) 

Hitchcock  3,424  39   0  979  1,592  2,571  31   (8) 

Holing  14,916  170   0  1,975  13,588  15,563  185   16  

Montclair  16,675  189   0  1,479  10,788  12,267  146   (43) 

Morton  4,829  55   0  1,656  3,646  5,302  63   8  

Neihardt  9,789  111   0  2,059  9,906  11,965  142   31  

Norris  11,331  129   0  1,583  7,565  9,148  109   (20) 

Reagan  9,080  103   0  578  6,270  6,848  82   (22) 

Reeder  7,535  86   0  279  3,641  3,920  47   (39) 

Rockwell  7,019  80   0  1,612  5,809  7,421  88   9  

Rohwer  4,225  48   0  294  2,670  2,964  35   (13) 

Sandoz  13,741  156   0  2,120  8,779  10,899  130   (26) 

Upchurch  10,791  123   0  448  9,242  9,690  115   (7) 

Wheeler  6,550  74   0  437  3,272  3,709  44   (30) 

Willowdale  5,125  58   0  866  3,725  4,591  55   (4) 

Elementary  210,135  2,388   0 30,501  161,616  192,118  2,287   (101) 

 

62



 

 
Elementary Lunch Participation 

 

  19/20  20/21    Variance 

School  

Total 
Lunch 

Total  Daily 
Lunch   

 Total 
Curbside 

Total 
Weekend 

Total In-
school Total 

Daily 
Total   

Daily 
Total 

Abbott  26,258  298   0  1,581  18,231  19,812  236   (63) 

Ackerman  26,562  302   0  2,399  17,920  20,319  242   (60) 

Aldrich  20,738  236   0  799  15,059  15,858  189   (47) 

Black Elk  27,853  317   0  500  22,099  22,599  269   (47) 

Bryan  23,142  263   0  326  17,045  17,371  207   (56) 

Cather  13,939  158   0  1,153  10,497  11,650  139   (20) 

Cody  15,317  174   0  697  11,676  12,373  147   (27) 

Cottonwood  18,509  210   0  913  14,675  15,588  186   (25) 

Disney  21,474  244   0  2,262  14,845  17,107  204   (40) 

Ezra  27,820  316   0  1,733  20,311  22,044  262   (54) 

Harvey Oaks  16,962  193   0  1,840  12,948  14,788  176   (17) 

Hitchcock  12,955  147   0  979  10,088  11,067  132   (15) 

Holling  22,938  261   0  1,975  18,747  20,722  247   (14) 

Montclair  34,550  393   0  1,479  22,652  24,131  287   (105) 

Morton  17,449  198   0  1,656  14,777  16,433  196   (3) 

Neihardt  32,002  364   0  2,059  22,496  24,555  292   (71) 

Norris  22,854  260   0  1,583  17,805  19,388  231   (29) 

Reagan  29,861  339   0  578  20,714  21,292  253   (86) 

Reeder  26,748  304   0  279  18,090  18,369  219   (85) 

Rockwell  15,307  174   0  1,612  10,859  12,471  148   (25) 

Rohwer  23,122  263   0  294  18,314  18,608  222   (41) 

Sandoz  21,601  245   0  2,120  15,786  17,906  213   (32) 

Upchurch  25,441  289   0  448  19,382  19,830  236   (53) 

Wheeler  27,196  309   0  437  17,756  18,193  217   (92) 

Willowdale  25,942  295   0  866  19,102  19,968  238   (57) 

Elementary  576,540  6,552   0  30,568  421,874  452,442  5,386   (1,165) 

 

 

 
 
 

63



Middle School Participation 
 

Middle School Breakfast Participation 
 

   19/20  20/21    Variance 

School  

Total 
Breakfast 

Total  
Daily 

Breakfasts   
 Total 

Curbside 
Total 

Weekend 
Total In-
school Total 

Daily 
Total   

Daily 
Total 

Andersen  6,968  79   0  2,369  6,228  8,597  102   23  

Beadle  2,510  29   0  1,754  8,528  10,282  122   94  

Central  21,255  242   6,435  3,775  15,139  25,349  302   60  

Kiewit  6,102  69   0  1,859  4,802  6,661  79   10  

North  8,137  92   0  2,643  6,697  9,340  111   19  

Russell  2,170  25   0  1,034  2,177  3,211  38   14  

Middle  47,142  536   6,435  13,434  43,571  63,440  755   220  

 

Middle School Lunch Participation 
 

   19/20  20/21    Variance 

School  

Total 
Lunch 

Total  Daily 
Lunch   

 Total 
Curbside 

Total 
Weekend 

Total In-
school Total 

Daily 
Total   

Daily 
Total 

Andersen  56,188  639   0  2,369  40,382  42,751  509   (130) 

Beadle  48,621  553   0  1,754  27,809  29,563  352   (201) 

Central  58,681  667   6,654  3,775  43,128  53,557  638   (29) 

Kiewit  53,311  606   0  1,859  35,018  36,877  439   (167) 

North  41,870  476   0  2,647  25,054  27,701  330   (146) 

Russell  41,076  467   0  1,092  29,483  30,575  364   (103) 

Middle  299,747  3,406   6,654  13,496  200,874  221,024  2,631   (775) 

 
Middle School A la Carte 

 
    19/20 20/21   

School   Daily $ Daily $ Variance 

Andersen   $380.41  $245.78  ($134.63) 

Beadle   $805.78  $405.54  ($400.24) 

Central   $419.90  $224.35  ($195.55) 

Kiewit   $580.97  $478.99  ($101.98) 

North   $437.47  $268.68  ($168.78) 

Russell   $451.67  $302.14  ($149.53) 

Middle   $3,076.20  $1,925.48  ($1,150.72) 

 

 

64



 

High School Participation 
 

High School Breakfast 
 

   19/20  20/21    Variance 

School  

Total 
Breakfast 

Total  Daily 
Breakfasts   

 Total 
Curbside 

Total 
Weekend 

Total In-
school Total 

Daily 
Total   Daily Total 

North  13,362  152   8,000  1,896  6,187  16,083  191   40  

South  17,324  197   7,776  2,589  8,501  18,866  225   28  

West  3,950  45   5,613  411  5,454  11,478  137   92  

Horizon  2,619  30   0  384  1,645  2,029  24   (6) 

High  37,255  423   21,389  5,280  21,787  48,456  577   154  

 
High School Lunch 

 

   19/20  20/21    Variance 

School  

Total 
Lunch 

Total  Daily 
Lunch   

 Total 
Curbside 

Total 
Weekend 

Total In-
school Total 

Daily 
Total   

Daily 
Total 

North  77,794  884   8,138  1,896  44,118  54,152  645   (239) 

South  104,674  1,189   7,776  2,589  57,114  67,479  803   (386) 

West  65,124  740   5,646  390  40,994  47,030  560   (180) 

Horizon  4,691  53   0  384  2,448  2,832  34   (20) 

High  252,283  2,867   21,560  5,259  144,674  171,493  2,042   (825) 

 

High School A La Carte 
 

    19/20 20/21   

School   Daily $ Daily $ Variance 

North   $3,389.79  $1,229.17   $               (2,160.62) 

South   $2,363.54  $1,189.96   $               (1,173.57) 

West   $3,417.76  $1,737.75   $               (1,680.01) 

Horizon   $59.71  $43.32   $                     (16.39) 

High   $9,230.80  $4,200.20   $               (5,030.59) 

 
 

 

 
 
 

65



 
 

 
 
 
Focus on Safety 
In preparation for the upcoming school year Food Service staff received training to 
safely navigate through their work day.  The “Six Foot Kitchen” ensures the safety of the 
students, staff and the foods they handle.  Training included the below topics: 
 

• Personal hygiene 

• Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 

• Cleaning Contact Surfaces 

• Accepting Deliveries 

• Food Storage 

• Food Production 

• Meal Service 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4%
8%

11%

77%

MAKE UP OF DAILY MEALS

Curbside Weekend A La Carte In School

66



 
 
Free Breakfast & Lunch 
 

Pursuant to the Families First Coronavirus Response Act of 2020 (P.L. 116-127) U.S. 
Secretary of Agriculture Sonny Perdue announced (USDA Free Meals Press 
Release) the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) will extend several flexibilities 
through as late as June 30, 2021. The flexibilities allow free meals to be served to all 
children ages 1 - 18 into the fall months regardless on their status as an in-school 
learner, concurrent remote learner or those not yet old enough to attend school.  This 
unprecedented move will help ensure – no matter what the situation is on-the-ground – 
children have access to nutritious food as the country recovers from the COVID-19 
pandemic. USDA has been and continues to be committed to using the Congressionally 
appropriated funding that has been made available. 

USDA’s Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) is extending a suite of nationwide waivers for 
the Summer Food Service Program (SFSP) through the end of 2020, or until available 
funding runs out. This includes: 

• Allowing breakfast and lunch meals to be served at all schools and at no cost. 
• Permitting meals to be served outside of the cafeteria. 
• Allowing parents and guardians to pick-up meals for their children that are not 

physically present in school. 

This is a temporary flexibility offered by the USDA, families will still need to: 

• Complete free and Reduced applications to receive applicable benefits outside of 
the school meals program and to continue meal benefits when the funding has 
been exhausted from the USDA. 

• These flexibilities do not cover a la carte purchases; items such as individually 
purchased milk will require payment. 

• Continue to have money on account for a la carte purchases. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67

https://www.fns.usda.gov/news-item/wtas-usda-extends-free-meals-kids-through-december-31-2020
https://www.fns.usda.gov/news-item/wtas-usda-extends-free-meals-kids-through-december-31-2020


 
 
 

Food Service Statistics and Financials 
 

 
July –  

September  
October –  
December 

January 
– March 

April – 
June 

Year-to-
Date 

Total training Hours--
2020/2021 

1,572.75 462.25 
 

  2,035.00 
Thru 12/31 

Total training Hours--
2019/2020 

1,541.00 486.00 381.00 173.00 2,581.00 

Total Training Hours –  
2018/2019 

1,315.00 401.00 556.75 
 

532.00 2,804.75 
 

Total Training Hours –  
2017/2018 

1,798.00 477.00 476.50 691.50 3,443.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2016/2017 

2,186.60 716.00 638.00 
 

803.00 
 

4,343.60 

Total Training Hours – 
2015/2016 

1,735.00 717.75 421.25 
 

446.00 
 

3,320.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2014/2015 

1,320.00 782.50 684.25 566.00 3,352.75 

Total Training Hours – 
2013/2014 

1,690.50 735.50 859.00 653.00 3,954.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2012/2013 

1,542.00 565.00 661.00 616.00 3,384.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2011/2012 

1,625.00 726.75 1,783.25 624.50 4,759.50 

Total Training Hours – 
2010/2011 

1,617.50 760.25 584.00 399.00 3,360.75 

Total Training Hours – 
2009/2010 

1,080.50 687.75 558.00 489.75 2,816.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2008/2009 

1,491.50 351.50 496.50 1,016.50 3,356.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68



 
 

FY 21 Actuals YTD 
 

Millard Revenue 
  

Cash Sales 
  

 
Breakfast Cash $ 0.00   
Lunch Cash $ 0.00   
Student A La Carte $ 539,007.30   
Adult A La Carte $ 21,124.65   
   
Kids Network $ 4,427.60   
Boys and Girls Club $ 25,091.50   
Vending $ 2,646.66   
Brook Valley $ 14,800.67   
Heartland $ 0.00   
Over/Short 

 

Reimbursements 
  

 
Federal Breakfast $907,552.60   
Federal Lunch $ 3,774,573.45   
State Breakfast $ 0.00   
State Lunch $ 0.00   
Summer $ 0.00   
  

   

   

 

                        Total Year to Date Excess/Deficit   $352,451.51 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

69



 
 
 
 
Below is a summary of the Free and Reduced students currently enrolled at Millard 
Public Schools, along with the percentage as it relates to total enrollment.   
 

 Free & 
Reduced 

Percentage 
2020-2021 25.1% 

2019-2020 25.0% 

2018-2019 23.5% 

2017-2018 22.7% 

2016-2017 21.3% 

2015-2016 17.7% 

2014-2015 17.8% 

2013-2014  18.9% 

2012-2013  18.6% 

2011-2012  18.6% 

2010- 2011  16.6% 

2009-2010  14.2% 

2008-2009  11.3% 

 

 

 

70



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: English Language Development (ELD) Program Review Report 
 
 
MEETING DATE: February 1, 2021 

 
 
BACKGROUND/ 
DESCRIPTION: In the 2019-2020 school year, a comprehensive review of the 

Millard English Language Development (ELD) Program was 
conducted.  A taskforce was assembled, extensive research was 
conducted, and a review of current programming took place.  The 
work of the taskforce is shared here, amd a summary of the 
recommendations are on the last page. 

  
 
ACTION DESIRED: Information Only 

 
 
POLICY/ 
STRATEGIC PLAN: No existing program, course, and/or service will be maintained 

unless it: 
● Meets a clearly demonstrated, mission-related need; 
● Survives a cost-benefit analysis and periodic evaluation. 

 
  

 
RESPONSIBLE  
PERSONS: Dr. Kara Hutton, Dr. Heather Phipps, Mr. Andy DeFreece, Pam Erixon  

 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S  
APPROVAL:  
 

  
 

 
  

 

71



Background 
 
Task: Review the current MPS English Language Development (ELD) Program model for its 
effectiveness and efficient use of staff. 
 
Taskforce members:  

Kara Hutton-Coord. of Special Programs 
Pam Erixon- District EL Support Specialist 
Sierra Becker-District Itinerant EL teacher 

Paul Grant-EL teacher at MSHS 
Jennifer Scott-EL teacher at AMS 
Amy Becker-EL teacher at Norris and Bryan 

 
Snapshot of English Learners (ELs) in Millard: 
 

 
 

1 

 Elementary-PK-5 Middle School High School Total 
Total number of EL students 19-20 556 67 73 696 
Eligible and Participating 335 51 65 451 
Eligible and not-participating (Waived) 221 16 8 245 

K-5 134    
PK 87   

By Language Level:     
Language level 1 51 11 21 83
Language level 2 100 9 15 124 
Language level 3 175 20 20 215 
Language level 4 143 27 17 187 
PK 87  87
Total 556 67 73 696 
By Grade:     
PK 87   
Kg 162    
1 126    
2 67   
3 51   
4 33   
5 30   
6  20  
7  27  
8  20  
9   21 
10   18 
11   18 
12   16 
Redesig. English Fluent < 4 years     
(monitor status) 331 188 89 608 
Grand Total 887 255 162 1304

72



Current ELD Model 
  
Millard serves a population that represents great diversity in language and culture.  Therefore, the EL program 
in Millard is currently an English-only, content-based English Language Development (ELD) program at the 
secondary level.  For elementary students the program is also English-only, but students are pulled out to 
receive English instruction.  In these programs, students are grouped by language ability level. Group 
assignments are flexible and temporary, changing according to the learners’ needs.  Most students spend the 
majority of the school day mainstreamed in the general education program, receiving relevant, meaningful 
support services from highly trained EL teachers in EL classes.  
 
Definition of Key Terms: 
 
Content-Based Instruction (CBI)-An approach to second language instruction in which content-area subjects 
and topics are used as the basis of instruction. 

Sheltered Instruction-Grade-level content-area instruction provided in English in a manner that makes it 
understandable to ELs while supporting their English language development. 

Dual Language Education-Bilingual education programs that develop bilingualism, biliteracy, grade-level 
academic achievement, and sociocultural development for all students. 

Translanguaging-Pedagogical practices that use bilingualism as a resource rather than ignore it or perceive it 
as a problem; using both languages to receive, process, and share information. 

 
Key Research Findings 
 
The task force looked at a multitude of books and research articles, including a report prepared by Hanover 
Research that was completed specifically for Millard Public Schools. The task force findings are aligned very 
closely to the Hanover conclusions which are reflected in the following chart.  The content-based, English only 
program offered at the secondary level in Millard has strong evidence of overall effectiveness (English 
acquisition as well as academic achievement) for beginning English speakers.  However, pullout, English only 
programs are less effective for the overall academic achievement of elementary students.  
  

2 

73



 

3 

 MODEL 
PROGRAM 

TYPES  GOAL 
TYPICAL 

PROFICIENCY 
LEVEL 

TYPICAL 
GRADE 
LEVELS 

RESEARCH ON 
EFFECTIVENESS 

  

  

English- 
only 

 Pull-out, Push-in 
Fluent English 
proficiency 

Limited and/or no 
proficiency. 

Elementary 
Limited Evidence of 
Effectiveness 

 Content-based 
(ESL Classroom) 

Fluent English 
proficiency 

Limited and/or no 
proficiency. 

Middle and 
Secondary 

Strong Evidence of 
Effectiveness 

English 
Immersion 

Fluent English 
proficiency 

Limited and/or 
no proficiency. 

Elementary Limited Evidence of 
Effectiveness 

Sheltered 
Instruction 

Fluent English 
proficiency 
(academic 
English) 

Limited to 
intermediate 
proficiency 

Middle and 
High 

 Strong Evidence of 
Effectiveness 

  

  

Dual/ 
Bilingual 

Developmental 
Bilingual (One- 
way Dual 
Language) 

Bilingualism 
and 
multicultural 
appreciation 

Limited and/or 
no proficiency. 

Elementary Moderate Evidence 
of Effectiveness 

Two-way 
Immersion 
(Two- way 
Dual 
Language) 

Bilingualism 
and 
multicultural 
appreciation 

 Limited 
and/or no 
proficiency. 

Elementary 
and 
Secondary 

Strong Evidence 
of Effectiveness 

  
Transitional 
Bilingual 

 Early Exit Bilingualism 
to transition 
to 
English-only 
instruction 

Limited and/or 
no 
proficiency. 

Elementary Moderate to 
Strong Evidence 
of Effectiveness 

  

Late Exit 

Fluency in 
Two 
Languages 

Elementary 
and Middle 

Moderate to 
Strong Evidence 
of Effectiveness 

74



 
Taskforce Recommendations 
 

1. Scheduling 
a. Elementary 

i. Increase push-in and co-teaching of EL teacher and classroom teachers for students 
with an English proficiency level of 3 or 4, particularly at Kindergarten and intermediate 
grades. Students need to receive content instruction to increase academic achievement.  

1. Indicates a need for more content teachers with ELL endorsements and training 
for Sheltered-Instruction 

ii. Will require schools to think about how they group students in grade-level classes. 
b. Middle School 

i. Increase the use of Sheltered-Instruction for students with an English Proficiency level of 
3 or 4 

1. Indicates a need for more content teachers with ELL endorsements, or 
2. Systemic professional development on Sheltered-instruction and the SIOP model 

ii. Implement transitional content classes 
c. High School 

i. Increase the use of Sheltered-Instruction for students with an English Proficiency level of 
3 or 4 

1. Indicates a need for more content teachers with ELL endorsements, or 
2. Systemic professional development on Sheltered-instruction and the SIOP model 

ii. Increase the ability to create co-taught courses as necessary due to EL numbers. 
1. Will require the school to strategically schedule students into co-taught courses. 

iii. Implement transitional content classes 
2. Implement consistent and systemic Professional Development 

a. Require all EL sites or schools with high numbers to offer EL PD once or twice per year 
b. Explore partnerships with UNO or the College of St. Mary to offer ELL endorsement program at 

a reduced cost and expedited timeline 
i. Can Title II A funds or student teaching credits be used to encourage more teachers to 

pursue an ELL endorsement? 
c. Explore summer or after school optional PD with a stipend 

3. Explore the development of a parent-student literacy program in the evenings, weekends, or summer 
4. Look at conferences and their format 

a. Twenty minutes is insufficient time to communicate appropriately 
5. Develop and implement strategies to foster a smooth transition between levels; preschool to 

kindergarten,  elementary to middle school, and middle school to high school 
a. EL teacher and counselor visit to aid registration 
b. Summer session for new families 

6. Explore the implementation of the Seal of Biliteracy 
a. Foster student pride in being bilingual for native English speakers learning another language as 

well as for students with a different first language who become proficient in English. 
7. Foster a broader recognition by students and the community of the importance of learning a second 

language, in this case, English. 
a. Use social media 
b. Build increased parental engagement 
c. Develop higher levels of awareness in building administrators who can support and inform 

teachers and staff members 

4 

75



d. Celebrate multilingualism 
 

Broad or Long-term Recommendations: 
1. Consider the feasibility of offering a bilingual or two-way dual language opportunity in Millard in order to 

promote higher academic achievement for all students. 

Research consistently indicates the effectiveness of bilingual programs as a key factor in reducing the 
achievement gap for English Learners (Alvear, 2015; Lindholm-Leary & Hernandex, 2011; Ramirez, 1992; 
Steele et al., 2017; Valentino & Reardon, 2014).  Because of the variety of languages spoken by our students, 
a one-way dual language or transitional bilingual program would not be very realistic or feasible.  We simply do 
not have a school with a high percentage of students with the same first language that is not English. 
 
Spanish is the most common first language in Millard other than English.  A two-way dual- language program 
could be developed.  A two-way program would consist of approximately 50% of the students with Spanish as 
a first language and 50% with English as a first language.  This dual-language program could be developed by 
a school as a parent choice program under Policy and Rule 10,001.1 
 
Two-way dual language programs integrate language and academic instruction for both ELs and non-ELs.  It 
includes the three key components of effective instruction:  

1. Promotes high academic achievement for all participating students(Marian, Shook, & Schroeder, 2013) 
2. Enhances language proficiency 
3. Promotes cross-cultural understanding 

 
In addition, research shows that regardless of EL status, participating students experience: 

● Increased cognitive stimulation 
● Higher levels of engagement 
● Increased metalinguistic awareness 
● Fewer disciplinary referrals 
● Higher graduation rates 
● Higher self-esteem 
● Higher value of diversity 

 
 
References 
 
California Department of Education, (2010) Improving Education for English Learners: Research-Based 
Approaches. 
 
Center on Instruction, (2009) Instructional Models and Strategies forTeaching English Language Learners 
 
Hamayan, E., Freema, R. Editors,(2006) English Language Learners at School: A Guide for Administrators. 
 
Hanover Research, (2019) Best Practices English Learner Program Structures, prepared for Millard Public 
Schools. 
 
Wright, W. E. (2019) Foundations for Teaching English Language Learners; Research, Theory, Policy, and 
Practice, Third Edition. 
 

5 

76



 
Summary of Recommendations 

 
1. Increase content-based delivery of ELD program for some students 

2. Implement consistent Professional Development for all teachers on EL strategies, Sheltered-instruction 
and the SIOP model 

a. Explore partnerships and available funds to increase the number of MPS teachers with EL 
endorsements 

3. Promote cultural competency and a broader recognition of the value of being multilingual 

a. Explore the Seal of Biliteracy 

4. Explore offering a bilingual or two-way dual language opportunity at the elementary level. 

 
 
 

 

6 

Recommendation 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 

Increase content-based delivery of ELD program for some students  

1
-
1 

Collaborate with EL 
teachers and Admin. to 
explore programming 
options for level 3 and 4 
students 

Underway 
(Kara Hutton, 
Pam Erixon) 

Implement    

1
-
2 

Increase the use of 
Sheltered-instruction or 
SIOP strategies 

 Underway    

Implement consistent Professional Development for all teachers on EL strategies, 
Sheltered-instruction and the SIOP model 

 

2
-
1 

Increase internal PD 
offerings 

Underway     

77



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Enrollment Report (as of January 12, 2021)

Meeting Date: February 1, 2021

Background/
Description: Enrollment data will be pulled four times over the course of the school year and reported

to the Millard Board of Education for public record. Enrollment data is stored in our
student information system, Synergy.

Action Desired: Information / Discussion

Policy /
Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible
Person(s): Dr. Darin Kelberlau and Sharon Freeman

Superintendent’s Signature:

78



January 12, 2021

Millard Public Schools

Total Enrollment

SpEd

Cluster Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

Elementary K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Abbott (3 unit) 86 75 66 65 81 67 440 0 0 440

Ackerman (4 unit) 79 69 90 84 83 80 485 1 1 484

Aldrich (3 unit) 70 66 95 73 80 79 463 1 1 462

Black Elk (4 unit) 96 101 91 111 76 80 555 6 6 549

Bryan (3 unit) 47 63 61 50 55 59 335 12 12 323

Cather (3 unit) 65 61 55 69 65 73 388 -2 -2 390

Cody (2 unit) 33 35 35 37 36 34 15 225 0 0 225

Cottonwood (3 unit) 50 47 66 61 48 58 14 344 14 14 330

Disney (3 unit) 51 67 54 54 56 55 12 349 0 0 349

Ezra Millard (3 unit) 91 69 69 85 75 90 479 4 4 475

Harvey Oaks (2 unit) 40 56 44 49 53 50 292 4 4 288

Hitchcock (2 unit) 54 45 39 44 45 36 263 -3 -3 266

Holling Heights (3 unit) 53 53 64 61 52 50 333 4 4 329

Montclair (4 unit) 82 86 89 91 87 96 531 -7 -7 538

Morton (3 unit) 64 63 52 48 33 51 12 323 3 3 320

Neihardt (4 unit) 79 82 75 80 84 102 502 -13 -13 515

Norris (3 unit) 66 66 56 53 61 54 356 4 4 352

Reagan (4 unit) 79 69 85 98 93 82 506 2 2 504

Reeder (4 unit) 90 62 83 93 73 122 523 -3 -3 526

Rockwell (3 unit) 38 33 35 30 30 42 15 223 2 2 221

Rohwer (3 unit) 63 71 86 59 101 66 12 458 2 2 456

Sandoz (3 unit) 46 47 62 54 48 52 309 5 5 304

Upchurch (3 unit) 65 80 59 78 84 73 439 11 11 428

Wheeler (4 unit) 99 111 93 92 85 105 14 599 8 8 591

Willowdale (3 unit) 75 92 68 70 83 71 459 6 6 453

Totals 1661 1669 1672 1689 1667 1727 94 10,179 61 61 10,118

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

Middle 6 7 8 Prgm* Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Andersen MS 319 317 324 8 960 9 9 951

Beadle MS 349 325 304 16 978 6 6 972

Central MS 300 296 276 14 872 -9 -9 881

Kiewit MS 311 320 330 0 961 -7 -7 968

North MS 275 287 248 13 810 10 10 800

Russell MS 248 266 237 0 751 -1 -1 752

Totals 1802 1811 1719 51 5,332 8 8 5,324

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

High Grads YTD 9 10 11 12 Prgm* Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

North HS 27 640 636 635 556 27 2467 -57 -57 2524

South HS 54 627 626 641 517 48 2411 -87 -87 2498

West HS 38 575 539 564 526 24 2204 -29 -29 2233

Horizon HS 12 0 7 32 95 0 134 20 20 114

Totals 131 1842 1808 1872 1694 99 7,216 -153 -153 7,369

*SpEd Program Included in MS/HS Grade Level totals Contracted SpEd 55 1 1 54

Rule 18 Interim 21 6 6 15

Young Adult Program 62 -5 -5 67

**Itinerant, Contracted, & Home Visit Pre-K in Oct 1, 2020 Enrollment: 114 Ombudsman (Primary) 10 0 0 10

**Itinerant, Contracted, & Home Visit Pre-K in Current Enrollment: 141 Total District K-12 22,875 -82 -82 22,957

Preschool SpEd Total Total District PreK-12** 23,682 23 23 23,659
Bryan 12 20 32 32

Cody 37 33 70 66
Disney 4 12 16 16  Elementary Elementary 10,118

Harvey Oaks 26 16 42 45 Middle School 5,332 Middle School 5,324

Holling Heights 5 10 15 16 High School 7,216 High School 7,369

Montclair Montessori 2 61 63 58 Contracted & Rule 18 76 Contracted & Rule 18 69

Neihardt 15 32 47 44 Young Adult 62 Young Adult 67

Norris 4 10 14 15 Ombudsman (Primary) 10 Ombudsman (Primary) 10

Norris Montessori 1 21 22 23   TOTAL 22,875   TOTAL 22,957

Reagan 24 22 46 39
Rockwell 24 29 53 51
Sandoz 20 19 39 36
Wheeler 28 20 48 48
Homebased Infants 159 0 159 99
TOTAL 588

Career Academies NHS SHS WHS HHS TOTAL

Education 11 11 15 37

Entrepreneurship 13 10 22 45

Health Sciences 21 22 70 113

Dist/Log Mgmt 9 1 16 26

Ombudsman  (Primary and Secondary Assignment) 19

1/12/2021 10/1/2020

10,179

Not SpEd

666

Oct 01, 2020

23,239
23,021 22,957 22,875

19000

19500

20000

20500

21000

21500

22000

22500

23000

23500

Oct '19 Aug '20 Oct '20 Jan '21

K-12 Enrollment 2020-2021

79



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020 Size w/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment SpEd

Abbott 23 25 23 21 22 23

21 25 21 22 19 22

22 25 22 22 20 22

20 20

Total Students 86 75 66 65 81 67 440 0 0 440 440

Total Teachers 4 3 3 3 4 3 20 20

Classroom Avg 21.5 25.0 22.0 22.0 20.3 22.3 22.0 22.0

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Ackerman 19 23 23 21 20 22

20 23 22 21 21 19

20 23 23 20 21 20

20 22 22 21 19

Total Students 79 69 90 84 83 80 485 1 1 484 485

Total Teachers 4 3 4 4 4 4 23 23

Classroom Avg 19.8 23.0 22.5 21.0 20.8 20.0 21.1 21.1

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Aldrich 23 22 25 25 26 26

23 22 24 24 27 26

24 22 23 24 27 27

23

Total Students 70 66 95 73 80 79 463 1 1 462 463

Total Teachers 3 3 4 3 3 3 19 19

Classroom Avg 23.3 22.0 23.3 24.3 26.7 26.3 24.4 24.4

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Black Elk 24 25 22 22 25 20

24 26 22 22 25 20

24 25 23 23 26 20

24 25 24 22 20

22

Total Students 96 101 91 111 76 80 555 6 6 549 555

Total Teachers 4 4 4 5 3 4 24 24

Classroom Avg 24.0 25.3 22.8 22.2 25.3 20.0 23.1 23.1

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Bryan 15 22 20 16 18 20

16 21 20 17 19 20

16 20 21 17 18 19

Total Students 47 63 61 50 55 59 335 12 12 323 335

Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18

Classroom Avg 15.7 21.0 20.3 16.7 18.3 19.7 18.6 18.6

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Cather 21 21 18 24 22 25

21 22 18 22 21 23

23 18 19 23 22 25

Total Students 0 0 0 0 0 0 65 61 55 69 65 73 388 -2 -2 390 388

Total Teachers 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18

Classroom Avg 21.7 20.3 18.3 23.0 21.7 24.3 21.6 21.6

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Cody 16 19 18 19 17 18 8

17 16 17 18 19 16 7

Total Students 33 35 35 37 36 34 15 225 0 0 225 210

Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12

Classroom Avg 16.5 17.5 17.5 18.5 18.0 17.0 7.5 16.1 17.5

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Cottonwood 25 24 22 20 23 21 4

25 23 22 21 25 19 5

22 20 18 5

Total Students 50 47 66 61 48 58 14 344 14 14 330 330

Total Teachers 2 2 3 3 2 3 3 18 15

Classroom Avg 25.0 23.5 22.0 20.3 24.0 19.3 4.7 19.1 22.0

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Disney 15 23 17 17 18 19 20 21 18 19 19 6

16 23 19 18 19 18 6

18

Total Students 31 46 36 35 37 55 20 21 18 19 19 12 349 0 0 349 337

Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 3 1 1 1 1 1 2 20 18

Classroom Avg 15.5 23.0 18.0 17.5 18.5 18.3 20.0 21.0 18.0 19.0 19.0 6.0 17.5 18.7

80



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020 Size w/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment SpEd

Ezra Millard 23 23 23 22 25 22

22 23 23 21 25 23

23 23 23 22 25 22

23 20 23

Total Students 91 69 69 85 75 90 479 4 4 475 479

Total Teachers 4 3 3 4 3 4 21 21

Classroom Avg 22.8 23.0 23.0 21.3 25.0 22.5 22.8 22.8

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Harvey Oaks 21 20 22 24 27 19

19 16 22 25 26 15

20 16

Total Students 40 56 44 49 53 50 292 4 4 288 292

Total Teachers 2 3 2 2 2 3 14 14

Classroom Avg 20.0 18.7 22.0 24.5 26.5 16.7 20.9 20.9

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Hitchcock 18 22 19 21 23 18

19 23 20 23 22 18

17

Total Students 54 45 39 44 45 36 263 -3 -3 266 263

Total Teachers 3 2 2 2 2 2 13 13

Classroom Avg 18.0 22.5 19.5 22.0 22.5 18.0 20.2 20.2

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Holling Heights 17 18 21 20 18 17

19 17 22 20 17 14

17 18 21 21 17 19

Total Students 53 53 64 61 52 50 333 4 4 329 333

Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18

Classroom Avg 17.7 17.7 21.3 20.3 17.3 16.7 18.5 18.5

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Montclair 19 22 23 26 21 19 16 21 20

18 21 23 25 22 19 16 22 21

21 13 19 19

21 21

22

21

Total Students 37 43 46 51 43 59 45 126 81 531 -7 -7 538 531

Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 6 4 26 26

Classroom Avg 18.5 21.5 23.0 25.5 21.5 19.7 15.0 21.0 20.3 20.4 20.4

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Morton 22 21 17 24 17 26 6

21 21 17 24 16 25 6

21 21 18

Total Students 64 63 52 48 33 51 12 323 3 3 320 311

Total Teachers 3 3 3 2 2 2 2 17 15

Classroom Avg 21.3 21.0 17.3 24.0 16.5 25.5 6.0 19.0 20.7

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Neihardt 23 19 18 20 22 21

20 21 19 20 21 21

17 21 20 19 21 21

19 21 18 21 20 21

18

Total Students 79 82 75 80 84 102 502 -13 -13 515 502

Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 5 25 25

Classroom Avg 19.8 20.5 18.8 20.0 21.0 20.4 20.1 20.1

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Norris 21 22 17 16 20 17 12 23 19

21 20 17 14 21 18 12 23 20

23

Total Students 42 42 34 30 41 35 24 69 39 356 4 4 352 356

Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 19 19

Classroom Avg 21.0 21.0 17.0 15.0 20.5 17.5 12.0 23.0 19.5 18.7 18.7

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Reagan 19 24 21 24 23 21

20 22 22 25 23 21

21 23 21 24 23 19

19 21 25 24 21

Total Students 79 69 85 98 93 82 506 2 2 504 506

Total Teachers 4 3 4 4 4 4 23 23

Classroom Avg 19.8 23.0 21.3 24.5 23.3 20.5 22.0 22.0

81



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020 Size w/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment SpEd

Reeder 16 22 21 23 24 25

20 19 21 22 25 24

18 21 20 25 24 25

18 21 23 24

18 24

Total Students 90 62 83 93 73 122 523 -3 -3 526 523

Total Teachers 5 3 4 4 3 5 24 24

Classroom Avg 18.0 20.7 20.8 23.3 24.3 24.4 21.8 21.8

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Rockwell 19 16 17 15 15 22 8

19 17 18 15 15 20 7

Total Students 38 33 35 30 30 42 15 223 2 2 221 208

Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12

Classroom Avg 19.0 16.5 17.5 15.0 15.0 21.0 7.5 15.9 17.3

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Rohwer 21 24 21 18 24 22 6

22 24 22 20 26 22 6

20 23 22 21 25 22

21 26

Total Students 63 71 86 59 101 66 12 458 2 2 456 446

Total Teachers 3 3 4 3 4 3 2 22 20

Classroom Avg 21.0 23.7 21.5 19.7 25.3 22.0 6.0 20.8 22.3

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Sandoz 15 16 20 20 17 17

15 16 21 17 16 17

16 15 21 17 15 18

Total Students 46 47 62 54 48 52 309 5 5 304 309

Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18

Classroom Avg 15.3 15.7 20.7 18.0 16.0 17.3 17.2 17.2

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Upchurch 22 20 20 19 21 24

21 20 19 20 21 24

22 20 20 20 21 25

20 19 21

Total Students 65 80 59 78 84 73 439 11 11 428 439

Total Teachers 3 4 3 4 4 3 21 21

Classroom Avg 21.7 20.0 19.7 19.5 21.0 24.3 20.9 20.9

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Wheeler 20 21 23 23 22 25 6

20 21 24 23 22 26 8

20 22 23 23 21 26

18 24 23 23 20 28

21 23

Total Students 99 111 93 92 85 105 14 599 8 8 591 585

Total Teachers 5 5 4 4 4 4 2 28 26

Classroom Avg 19.8 22.2 23.3 23.0 21.3 26.3 7.0 21.4 22.5

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Willowdale 25 23 23 23 20 23

25 24 23 23 21 24

25 22 22 24 22 24

23 20

Total Students 75 92 68 70 83 71 459 6 6 453 459

Total Teachers 3 4 3 3 4 3 20 20

Classroom Avg 25.0 23.0 22.7 23.3 20.8 23.7 23.0 23.0

Elementary Totals SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 M-1 M-2 M-3  M-4 M-5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Students 1661 1669 1672 1689 1667 1727 67 65 63 64 56 94 10179 61 61 10118 10085

Teachers 84 75 77 77 75 79 9 6 15 497 482

Classroom Avg 19.8 22.3 21.7 21.9 22.2 21.9 6.3 20.5 20.9

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2020

6 7 8 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Andersen MS 319 317 324 8 960 9 9 951

Beadle MS 349 325 304 16 978 6 6 972

Central MS 300 296 276 14 872 -9 -9 881

Kiewit MS 311 320 330 0 961 -7 -7 968

North MS 275 287 248 13 810 10 10 800

Russell MS 248 266 237 0 751 -1 -1 752

Totals 1802 1811 1719 51 5332 8 8 5324

9 10 11 12

North HS 640 636 635 556 27 2467 -57 -57 2524

South HS 627 626 641 517 48 2411 -87 -87 2498

West HS 575 539 564 526 24 2204 -29 -29 2233

Horizon HS 0 7 32 95 134 20 20 114

Totals 1842 1808 1872 1694 99 7216 -153 -153 7369

Contracted SpEd 55 1 1 54

Rule 18 Interim 21 6 6 15

Young Adult Program 62 -5 -5 67

Ombudsman (Primary Enrollment) 10 0 0 10

Total District Enrollment 22875 -82 -82 22957

82



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item:  Legislative Report 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2021 

Background/ 
Description: This report provides a general update on legislative actions including bills that 

have been identified to have potential impact on Millard Public Schools. 

Action Desired: Informational 

Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference: 

Responsible  Person(s):         Nolan Beyer, Executive Director Activities, Athletics & External Affairs 

Superintendent’s Signature: 

83



2021 Millard Public Schools - Legislative Summary
Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 

Stance
GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB2 Briese Revenue Change the valuation of agricultural land 
and horticultural land for certain school 
district taxes
(amends property tax valuation to provide 
that for purposes of school district taxes 
levied to pay bonds agriculture and 
horticultural land be valuated at 30% of 
actual vlaue. 

Oppose Oppose

LB3 Briese Education Change notice requirements for school 
district budget hearings and require 
access to school district data (requires 
NDE to establish a website that allows 
public access districts revenue and 
spending information)

Neutral

LB5 Blood Education Adopt the Purple Star Schools Act Support
LB17 Kolterman Nebraska 

Retirement 
Systems

1-27-21 Change actuarial valuation and 
amortization provisions for certain state 
retirement systems

Neutral

LB36 Erdman Education Require display of the national motto in 
schools (requires districts to prominently 
display the nation motto, "in God We 
Trust" in each classroom or in another 
prominent place where each school will 
see it each day school is in session.  
Requires Attorney General to intervene 
on behalf of districts) 

Oppose

LB54 Lathrop Judiciary Change immunity for intentional torts 
under the Political Subdivisions Tort 
Claims Act and the State Tort Claims Act 
(removes 5 million dollar cap on liability in 
some situations)

Oppose

LB62 Kolterman Education Create the Access College Early 
Scholarship Cash Fund and change 
provisions relating to the Nebraska 
Education Improvement Fund, Nebraska 
Opportunity Grant Fund, and Community 
College Gap Assistance Program Fund

Support

84

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4MD1hNDw3MWBjMTM8YDc9NT1gN2cyMjxgZzI1MDE8MWAzPDwwZj00NiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB2.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NmFnMDw2Zjw3PT1jZmQ2YzY1MWNkMmMzMzQ3NGQwZjA8N2BkZzxnMCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB3.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4PDNkMTZkMDY0NTRhNWAwYzBmZjM0MDxhMmYzZDU2M2FmNzNmMWA8ZCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB5.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NDQ2Z2RjYDw9YWQwN2RkY2Q9MGAzZjNhYzY9N2Q0Z2AyYGQ2YGcxNCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB36.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4YTxhYzVnZzI0N2dkMjFnNjAzNWNmZz02NmdgYGM1YDMyYTw2PGdhNyNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB54.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4PGc2MmRjM2M0NWFnZDFhPWQ8MGQ2ZjYzNWc9NTI9Yz1jM2Q3NzE2NSNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB62.pdf


2021 Millard Public Schools - Legislative Summary
Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 

Stance
GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB65 Williams Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

Change contractual conflict of interest 
provisions under the Nebraska Political 
Accountability and Disclosure Act (clean 
up language)

Neutral

LB67 Day Health and Human 
Services

Change provisions relating to school-
based health centers under the Medical 
Assistance Act

LB71 Wayne Judiciary Change provisions relating to intentional 
tort claims under the Political 
Subdivisions Tort Claims Act and State 
Tort Claims Act

Oppose

LB79 Briese Revenue Change the minimum amount of relief 
provided under the Property Tax Credit 
Act

LB83 Flood Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

1/27/2021 Change the Open Meetings Act to 
provide for virtual conferencing (enable to 
boards to meet virtually.  Require 
agendas and minutes of board meetings 
to be posted for six months after a 
meeting)  

Support Support

LB87 Morfeld Education Provide for mental health first aid training 
for school districts and change provisions 
relating to the use of lottery funds

Support

LB88 Morfeld Judiciary 1/29/2021 Protect free speech rights of student 
journalists and student media advisers

Oppose Oppose Oppose

LB112 Albrecht Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

1/27/2021 Require members of the public to be 
allowed to speak at each meeting subject 
to the Open Meetings Act
(require the ability for public comment at 
all board meetings) 

Oppose

LB117 Cavanaugh, M. Education Adopt the Hunger-Free Schools Act
LB132 DeBoer Education Create the School Financing Review 

Commission
Support Support

LB133 Erdman Revenue Adopt the Nebraska EPIC Consumption 
Tax Act and eliminate certain other taxes 
(completely reworks the taxation 
methods)

Oppose

LB135 Wishart Education 2/25/2021 Change special education 
reimbursements

Monitor Support Support

85

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NDA1YWAyZz1gPDVhNT1mYTMwZmY9NWQ9YTYwNzUyMjRmPWM9Z2A3YyNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB65.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4PDBjZGY9ZzZmZ2AwYD1mZjA8M2Y9ZzU1NWA2ZzE3NTI9NGQyM2ZjZiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB67.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4YTxjNzUxZmZnMDQxPGc8MjcxPDc0PTUwYzEyNGBnZjwyPDA9NzYxMiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB71.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4MzVhPGc1NTAxYTYyNDA9ZmRkNzU9NmY0ZGBgPDMxZD03ZzU0YDcwZiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB79.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4Mj08ZmYwMTI0YDM3NTdhZmEwNGRjN2BgYzM9ZmQ3Mz03PDEzZDwwMiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB83.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4Mjw8Z2FgNTJnZDQ3PGRkMzdgZmE3NWQ9YzBjNTUxYTA1PDc2ZDJkMSNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB87.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4Yz1nMDJnZDc1MGZmNDRgPWBkY2MxZmYzYWE0YDdhYzI9NjUyZjc8ZCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB88.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4ZjFgPDdgYzIzNGdgNGZhZjUwMTY9MjMzPDE3YGRjMmBkPWM3ZjAyYCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB112.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4MzFjPDNmPDNkNzY3MjxkMTFnPTA8Mzc9Y2QyPDNkZGdmYGNmMzxkMCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB117.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NDIxZzY0Nj1kZDBnNDczPD1hNjAwPDBgYWBnZzc3ZzYyYGE0MDE2YyNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB132.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8MDg3NmdkMmdlZzQ4ODgzOWA2ZDUwMmI3YjNgY2U2MGRjZDVlZDdgYid1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB133.pdf


2021 Millard Public Schools - Legislative Summary
Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 

Stance
GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB136 Vargas Education Change procedures regarding short-term 
suspension of students

LB143 Kolterman Health and Human 
Services

Require notice to school districts 
regarding changes in child placement

Support Support

LB146 Kolterman Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems

Define and redefine terms relating to 
school retirement provisions

Support

LB153 Wayne Education 2/25/2021 Include virtual school students in the 
state aid to schools formula (TEEOSA 
would be amended include students who 
are virtual learners, and those who are 
virtual learners not enrolled on a full-time 
basis) 

Monitor Monitor

LB154 Wayne Education Require tracking of student discipline as 
prescribed (require State Board of 
Education to implement a system tracking 
student discipline, including the type of 
discipline and demographic information of 
students) 

LB198 Vargas Education Change provisions relating to the Student 
Discipline Act

Oppose Oppose

LB200 Vargas Education Provide a high school graduation 
requirement relating to federal student aid 
(require all students to complete Free 
Application for Federal tudent Aid prior to 
graduating) 

Monitor Oppose Monitor

LB209 McDonnell Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems

Change provisions relating to treatment 
of deferred compensation by certain 
political subdivisions, state agencies, and 
the Public Employees Retirement Board

Neutral

LB210 Murman Education 2/25/2021 Change provisions relating to part-time 
enrollment in public schools and 
extracurricular activities (School boards 
would be required to establish policies 
allowing students who attend home 
school or non-accredited schools to 
participate in extracurricular activities at 
public schools) 

Oppose

LB212 Cavanaugh, M. Executive Board Prohibit charging members of the 
Legislature fees for public record 
requests

Monitor

86

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB136.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8Yjc4NGVkMzYzNWVjNTI5ODgzMWAyOTRjZDlgYDFnYzBiNWQzOGQ0MSd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB143.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB146.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8MmdiZDQyYmU0NWQwYzU4NDA2Y2NnNDA0MWNkNGJlODVnYjllZDEyZCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB153.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8YmNgZTExNzM3YmczMjIxZzQ0NGJjMzNiMTM3Z2RiZDJlNGAwOTJjMCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB154.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8NTQ3MWJiMmRjZzc3ODY1YzJlYzY1NmMyYzFjYjZiZWQ1ODYxMmNjNCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB198.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8ZzQ4MjUwMzliZGAxNDNjNjAwNTNiYDRgMjI3ZTVjY2MzMTYyZTkyYCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB200.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8NDQxMjAwMDBjYGA2ZzU2MGBkZ2I4YzUwOTliZTNiMzI3NDQ1YjZnOCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB209.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8NmMwNGAyNWQ1MDJlN2Q4NDlgZzMwZ2cxNWIxMGc2ZzZlNDVjYDA5Zyd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB210.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8M2UwYDllMWIxNjJkYDgxYjY1ZGU3M2c4MDMzYDhgMDlnZDRlNDdgMCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB212.pdf


2021 Millard Public Schools - Legislative Summary
Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 

Stance
GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB281 Albrecht Education Require child sexual abuse prevention 
instructional programs for school students 
and staff

Oppose

LB282 Albrecht Change provisions relating to obscenity Neutral
LB286 Walz Education 2/25/2021 Redefine a term relating to schools (adds 

k-8 definition for elementary)
Neutral

LB287 Walz Education 2/25/2021 Change school finance base limitation 
and local effort rate provisions

Monitor

LB288 Walz Education 2-25-21 Change dates related to certification and 
distribution of state aid to schools

Neutral

LB289 Walz Education 2/25/2021 Redefine a term in the Tax Equity and 
Educational Opportunities Support Act 
(adds K-8 definition for elementary)

Neutral

LB322 Williams Education Adopt the School Safety and Security 
Reporting System Act

LB323 Walz Education 2/25/2021 Change provisions of the Tax Equity and 
Educational Opportunities Support Act 
relating to pandemics

Support Support

LB327 Slama Education Require a personal finance or financial 
literacy credit for high school graduation

Neutral Oppose

LB359 Pansing Brooks Education Change provisions regarding multicultural 
education as prescribed and provide 
powers for the State Board of Education

Neutral

LB361 Dorn Appropriations State intent regarding appropriations to 
the State Department of Education

Support Support Support

LB364 Linehan Revenue 1/28/2021 Adopt the Opportunity Scholarships Act 
and provide tax credits

Oppose Oppose Oppose

LB368 Sanders Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

1/29-21 Provide the Auditor of Public Accounts 
enforcement powers for failure of political 
subdivisions to file reports

Monitor

LB369 Sanders Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

1/29/2021 Provide the Auditor of Public Accounts 
access to working papers and audit files

Monitor

LB378 DeBoer Education Require the Commissioner of Education 
to report data as prescribed

Neutral

LB380 Hilgers) Appropriations Appropriate funds for the expenses of 
Nebraska State Government for the 
biennium ending June 30, 2023

87

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NjQ0YTA3YjdgYGIwNjQ8MmViYTcwMmYwZzNnZTc1YjU0NWc8YmcyZiJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB281.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5YDxmNTYzN2BgYjBnZTRnYmVlYTNiMmdlYDwxNWY1MD1hPWJiYmFlZiJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB282.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5MjNlZzIwZjI8PT09ZzVmPWI1ZjVgNGdhMGc2NWY9ZTdmMDc8YD01PCJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB286.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NDRmMzBiYGA1PDNnMDJgMTFmNTAxZT1nZmcyZzY3ZTJiYmU9MGE8YSJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB287.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5MjxmNjJlNTMzPDQyNmVhMzU3Z2U0PTZnMmczYGIxZ2YyNzI3MDxgMSJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB288.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5N2cyNjcwYTQ8NmE2ZjNiMTQyNDM9MjBlYTZiPTFmMDJhNmAxPT03NyJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB289.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42bz5qOG5tPTo7Ozk5aTI+Pm47PW08bjltPjJpaD87bTxpOmk5Pjs+by1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB322.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42OD9vajgybTk4am5tbj85aG0+OTozbT8zPzxtPW07OGg6PWk6OjxuOi1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB323.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42PmpoP20zb2k/PDNqMzxtMmhqbz48OzszPTo6OT0zOzo9OjI4OzkzPi1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB327.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42P2o+aDJtbzpuOm8/aj8+bWo6MmlpMjJpaD1vPm1qb286b2ptaW1tai1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB359.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42am5oODkyMzo/bj06bjMybzwzPTM8OTpvaGltPjg+Mm87bm1uOm08PS1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB361.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42PG89Oj8/bT9oOjlubmo/OTM+MjozPjw8MzJuMjs5bWgzPWo4OzJtOi1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB364.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42MzNuOjluaTptOThoOjo6Mzk+Pjo8Oj5oODoyPzs8aDw4Pmg5PmhvaS1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB368.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42OzI8Pj9qOTM5aW5uOmo+aDhuOT88Pm9uaTM6Oz8yMm08aDlpbm4ybi1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB369.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42PW1oMjIzMm0+MjJvbzI/aW1pOzsybjk8bW8ybTxobm88Pm0+b2puPS1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB378.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB380.pdf


2021 Millard Public Schools - Legislative Summary
Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 

Stance
GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB388 Friesen Transportation and 
Telecommunication
s

Adopt the Nebraska Broadband Bridge 
Act

LB389 Sanders Education Require the issuance of teaching 
certificates and permits to military 
spouses

Support

LB396 Brandt Education Adopt the Nebraska Farm-to-School 
Program Act

LB408 Briese Revenue 1/27/2021 Adopt the Property Tax Request Act Oppose Oppose
LB417 Halloran Judiciary Authorize possession of a firearm on 

school grounds by a full-time, off-duty law 
enforcement officer

LB422 Briese Revenue Change the sales tax rate and impose sales tax on additional services
LB436 Hansen, B. Health and Human 

Services
Change provisions of the Athletic Training 
Practice Act

Monitor

LB452 McKinney Education Adopt the Financial Literacy Act Oppose

LB454 Friesen Revenue Adopt the School Property Tax 
Stabilization Act and change the 
valuation of agricultural land

LB456 Friesen Transportation and 
Telecommunication
s

Adopt the Nebraska Enhancing Broadband Act

LB473 DeBoer Education Adopt the Extraordinary Increase in 
Special Education Cost Act

Monitor Support Support

LB480 McKinney Business and 
Labor

Change the minimum wage as 
prescribed. (incrementally increase by 
one dollr beginning in 2022 intil 2032 to 
$20

LB518 Morfeld Education Change provisions relating to long-term 
suspension, expulsion, or mandatory 
reassignment under the Student 
Discipline Act

LB523 Albrecht Education Change provisions relating to certain 
school taxes and special funds

Oppose

LB528 Walz Education Change, eliminate, and add provisions 
relating to education

88

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB388.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVs5MjAzOSV1PjEtMyVqZz4zMjkzMiVwamRtYnd2cWY+OjYxNGIwMTIxZzE2YTUzMjsyO2YzNTBgNGE6YjM6NjM2N2c0MjoyOiV3PjI1MjM7Mjo3OjolcmpnPjIzREtzZ3ZVMzIxMzIxLjIzREtzZ3ZbMzIxMzIxJXFgc3c+JWA+NjIla2dvPjM=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB389.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVs5MjAzOSV1PjEtMyVqZz4zMjkzMiVwamRtYnd2cWY+Nmc3YTczYmFhMTE7MzJhYGZmNDFgNjExZWZiNTFgOjIwZ2JiOzcxZSV3PjI1MjM7Mjo3OjolcmpnPjIzREtzZ3ZVMzIxMzIxLjIzREtzZ3ZbMzIxMzIxJXFgc3c+JWA+NjIla2dvPjM=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB396.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVs5MjAzOSV1PjEtMyVqZz4zMjkzMiVwamRtYnd2cWY+ZzIyO2U2YDs0NDE0YDBhMTFiMDAwYjYxOzVnZTFlOzIyZTQxZjRmMyV3PjI1MjM7Mjo3OjolcmpnPjIzREtzZ3ZVMzIxMzIxLjIzREtzZ3ZbMzIxMzIxJXFgc3c+JWA+NjIla2dvPjM=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB408.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVs5MjAzOSV1PjEtMyVqZz4zMjkzMiVwamRtYnd2cWY+ZmdhZTowNDYyZ2Y2NTtnOzBhZmJhNzJiMjs6N2E7Nzs6YjBmZjI1MSV3PjI1MjM7Mjo3OjolcmpnPjIzREtzZ3ZVMzIxMzIxLjIzREtzZ3ZbMzIxMzIxJXFgc3c+JWA+NjIla2dvPjM=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB417.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB422.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4MjJkNjNhMjAxZj1jPWQ3NDY2PDRgMjYzZDcxPWMzNzU8ZGM8YDVhMSNxODQzNDU8PDYwMzAjdGxhODQ1TExGb1BWNTc2Mzw9KDQ1TExGb1BQNTc2Mzw9I3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB436.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4ZjAyZ2Y2MmM1N2c9PDc2PTVmNmY3MjNkZ2cyPDwxZjw0PDc0YDNgNiNxODQzNDU8PDYwMzAjdGxhODQ1TExGb1BWNTc2Mzw9KDQ1TExGb1BQNTc2Mzw9I3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB452.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NDMxNTUzYTQ0MzQwYDxgYWYwYWZgMWc3YzZhNT1kMDYxMD08YGEwYyNxODQzNDU8PDYwMzAjdGxhODQ1TExGb1BWNTc2Mzw9KDQ1TExGb1BQNTc2Mzw9I3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB454.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB456.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4PGE3ZDEzPGc3NjQ9YDQ0MjUyN2ExYTI3YWM1NDMzPDI2ZGMyNDQ3NyNxODQzNDU8PDYwMzAjdGxhODQ1TExGb1BWNTc2Mzw9KDQ1TExGb1BQNTc2Mzw9I3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB473.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB480.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01PT4xPDhsa247ajw/PDFubjBrams/OWpuO209PjE4Pz0/PjhqbTprOS58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB518.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01OmxpaT84PDo/P20wPW49MT1tbD0+OzFsajs6bmptPWpqazo/OT05PC58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB523.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01P246ajBrbW45amxtPW09Oj09aWpqbj9rbT45aj47bWk6Pjg4Oj45PS58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB528.pdf


2021 Millard Public Schools - Legislative Summary
Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 

Stance
GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB529 Walz Education Change provisions for the distribution of 
lottery funds used for education, transfer 
powers and duties, create new acts and 
funds, and change education provisions

Support Support

LB531 Briese Revenue Adopt the Nebraska Child Care 
Contribution Tax Credit Act

LB538 Walz Education Adopt the Community Schools Act and 
change the distribution of income from 
solar and wind agreements on school 
lands

LB545 Wayne General Affairs Adopt the Games of Skill Act, provide for 
excise taxes, and use proceeds to reduce 
school district property tax levies

LB550 Wayne Education Change enrollment option limits and 
provisions for part-time enrollment in 
schools

LB558 Vargas Education Adopt the Alternative Certification for 
Quality Teachers Act

Monitor

LB568 Pansing Brooks Judiciary Change provisions relating to truancy, 
juvenile courts, the Community-based 
Juvenile Services Aid Program, the 
Commission Grant Program, and 
compulsory education

LB607 Hilgers Education Correct references to a federally defined 
term relating to education

LB622 Friesen Revenue Limit the growth of real property 
valuations and provide for adjustments to 
assessed values

LB623 Vargas Education Adopt the Remote Instruction Act
LB625 Vargas Revenue Impose a surtax on certain taxable 

income and use the tax proceeds for 
early childhood education

LB630 Bostar Education Provide for a study of the efficacy of 
commercial air filters in classrooms

LB639 Day Education Adopt the Seizure Safe Schools Act
LB640 Day Education Change provisions related to early 

childhood education in the Tax Equity 
and Educational Opportunities Support 
Act

89

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01am5rODA6PG1qMT5pMTpuPTwxaz4xPjA+ajg9amwwO24waj1uam06PS58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB529.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01aTltbTg7PW1sO2s8bDs4a2ttPTAwPjpuaj0xMGs8bTg6Pm4/OD1ubC58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB531.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01ODgxPT4wPGw7MTBraWw+PTltbDk+bW04PWs+OzBtPzk6bj4xaTFuOi58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB538.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01MTFpbjkxMT44PD4wOmw+Oz1rbDkwbjlqO245MT45P2puMGlsOTo+Pi58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB545.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01PDg8bG4wMWw8aT9rbT06aWw4ajw8bTBpPG0/aj1tO2s+MW5rPDBqOC58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB550.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01OT1sPTw+aT8/PTBraj1uOT9saT8+OGluOT4wajhtMGwxbTBubj0xbi58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB558.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01PmtuP2tqPzE6PTlpMW0wPWltPzs8aTtsOjgxbW1tMT08aW05MD06aS58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB568.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NDAyZzUyYD1hYjViNT02YT0zZTVgMjc8Njc8ZzxiNzA3YDAwZWcxNSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB607.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5ZzIzNGVgZmEzNTNiNDBmN2czYWJnNWAyM2Y3ZTQ8NzJnNmI3ZTA0YSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB622.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NDA3MmUyMzM1ZjNhZTM8MD1gZ2JnZTc2YjYwMjw3YDQ8PGI0MTE3NSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB623.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5YD1nPT09YTRmMzFnYTFmM2c1ZmA3NGI0ZmFlNzA3YWEzNDQ1Zz0zNyJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB625.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5Zz1gPWZhNjFmZmI1ND1mPDVlYGI0ZTU0ZmcxNTUyMDdlMTZhNmAzYSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB630.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5ZmJhPDYxPDI0MTIxM2I2ZmdgZzBgNTw2YGBnMmJnPTc0ZTNnZjM2PSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB639.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5PDRgZTwwMjxgNTJmMGE9NmZmYmBhNjZmMGc1NWc8NTRhNTRlYjE0NiJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB640.pdf


2021 Millard Public Schools - Legislative Summary
Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 

Stance
GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB641 Day Education Change provisions regarding school 
district salaries during an epidemic

LB642 Day Education Provide for reimbursements to school 
districts and educational service units for 
mental health expenditures

LB644 Hansen, B. Revenue Adopt the Property Tax Request Act Oppose
LB651 Wayne Education Provide a termination date for the 

enrollment option program
LB654 Wayne Banking, 

Commerce and 
Insurance

Adopt the Public Entities Investment 
Trust Act

LB673 Murman Education Adopt the Education Behavioral 
Awareness and Support Act and change 
the determination and certification of 
state aid to schools

LB675 Linehan Education Adopt the Education Lobbyist Pay 
Transparency Act

LB681 Linehan Revenue Include elementary and secondary 
schools in the Nebraska educational 
savings plan trust and change tax 
benefits

LB684 Clements Business and 
Labor

Allow public school employees to join or 
terminate membership in a labor 
organization as prescribed

LR13CA Brewer Education Constitutional amendment to limit the 
percentage of funding for schools that 
comes from property taxes

 

Oppose Oppose

LR21CA Briese Education Constitutional amendment to require the 
State of Nebraska to pay all classroom 
expenses related to the operation of 
public elementary and secondary schools

Oppose Oppose

LR22CA Linehan Revenue 1/27/2021 Constitutional amendment to limit the 
total amount of property tax revenue that 
may be raised by political subdivisions

Oppose Oppose

90

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5YjVhM2IzMzJnYDJmPWE1YDdgZTNlMj08PTU2Z2VgNDw9MTNiNjAzYCJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB641.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NzAxNzE9ZjQ2ZjJhMmI8NmI2MmJlYWIyZ2E0YTUxZjEzPTBhMWExYSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB642.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5PTRnNDxnYTE8YGdgNWAwMDMxYmVhM2VlYTY8ZzFhNmc1NmIwMDY8PCJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB644.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5PGIwMTU3ZWc2YTM9NDQ3YjZgZzU8MzQyMjwyNT02NjNgMTU0PDA8NyJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB651.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5M2FnZWBiYjwyPGViMjBnYWc2PGAyNTxmYTM2YjE3MWU0NzE3Zz01ZiJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB654.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NDY0YjQzYmc1Z2BgNDVnPTw9YTYwNzBmNDZiZj01ZzNhZTEyYDZnYSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB673.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NGZgMjRnNDJhZWIxMjI3MGU8YDdmZTU3PD02Z2diN2E1PGBgPWA8YCJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB675.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5YjNmMjU3NWY9Mz0xZ2A2YGJhNWZiMWFiNjMxYDIxMmc8ZzNgMj1iMSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB681.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5PTw3NGI1MDVgM2I8ZjM9YjQzNDBmMjM2NWEyYGEwYWJhMWJgM2ExMCJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB684.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8Y2Q4ODdkNjgwM2A1NzQ1NDFiZTc5YDI4NGc1ZzkwZGAzYzViNjg1ZSd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLR13Ca.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42MjhvbW85OTNuPjo+PzttOmg4O2hubjhpOj48bW08PD1pOj4yOGptPy1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLR21CA.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVI2PT88Nip6MT4iPCplaDE8PTY8PSp/ZWtibXh5fmkxOjU9PGlvaGk9bz84NDo+aG4/PTs+Om5tajo9aGo1ND09O2hpPG4+bip4MT06PT0/Pjs9NToqfWVoMT08QUl+S0BdPD49PT07IT08QUl+S0BfPD49PT07Kn5vfHgxKm8xOT0qZGhgMTw=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLR22CA.pdf



